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AGRINURTURE, INC.

54 Mational Read, Dampol 2 A, Pulilan, Bulacan 3005, Philippines
AgriNurture, Inc. Tolefax: (B32) 997-5184 wiww ami com. ph
Manila Office: (B32) / 967-2080-83

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of AGRINURTURE, INC. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021,

in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as Management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial
statemants including schedules attached therein that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or arror.

In preparing the financial staterments, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management intends
1o liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Tha Board of Directors is responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein and submits the same to the stockholders.

R.5. Bamaldo & Associates, the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders,
has audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on

the fairness of presentation upon complation of such audit.
b
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PKF R.S. Bernaldo & Associates PKF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
AGRINURTURE, INC.

Mo, 54 Mational Road

Dampal -4, Pulilan

Bulacan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinfon

Wea have audited the financial statements of AGRINURTURE, INC. (the “Parent Company”},
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of
cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting palicies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present faidy, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Parent Company as 8t December 371, 2022 and 2021,
and its financial performance and cash flows for the years than anded in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Baszis for Opimion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA).
Dur  responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Acvdifor’s
Responsibifities for the Awdit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
Wea are independent of the Parent Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and
we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide basis for our opinion,

Key Auait Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were
addressad in the context of our audit of the financial stataments as a whole, and in forming
our gpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,
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Key Audit Martrer 1

The Risk
Expected Credit Losses

The significant application of judgement and estimates of the management in formulating the
ECL model of the Parant Company made it significant to our audit. These kay matters include
how managemant defines what comprises default, identifies and groups credit risk exposures,
detarmines tha method to estimate lifetime ECL, determines assumptions used in formulating
the ECL model and incorporates forward-looking information in calculating ECL.

Our Response

Our audit procedures include the following:

Obtained an understanding of the Parent Company’s methodologies used for different credit
gxposuras to determing if these are applicable to the requirements of PFRS 9 to reflect an
unbiased and probability-weighted outcome and the acceptable forward-looking information.
We a) compared the definition of default with the historical analysis of accounts and credit
risk management policies in place; bl assessed the Parent Company’s segmentation of its
cradit risk exposures based on similarity of credit risk characteristics; c] checked the
methodology used in applying the simplified approach by ewvaluating the key inputs,
assumptions, and formulas used; d) tested loss given default by inspecting historical recoveries
including the timing, related direct costs, and write-offs; e} evaluated the forward-looking
information used for overlay through statistical test and corroboration using publicly available
information; f) recalculated impairment provisions on a sample basis; and h) compared the
results with the allowance disclosed for credit losses using the ECL model in the financial
statements.

Key Audit Marrer 2
The Risk
Aecoverability of Advances fo a Stockholder

As at December 31, 2022, the Parent Company has outstanding advances to a stockholder
amounting to P116,423,993. This is significant to our audit because the assessment of
racoverability of the advances requires a high level of management judgment and the
astimation of future cash repayments. The Parent Company's disclosure about the transaction
and recoverability of the amounts are included in Mote 20 to the financial statements.

Ouwr Response

Our audit procedures focused on the evaluation of management’'s assessment on the
recoverability of the advances to a stockholder. We obtained confirmation from the
stockholder for the acknowledgement of the liability to the Parent Company, the purpose of
the advances, and repayment terms that covers the timing of future cash flows and manner

of payment.



Koy Awdit MWarrer 3
Fair Value of Biological Assets

The Parent Company’s biological assets are accounted for at fair value. The carrying value of
the Parent Company’'s biological assets amounted P49,.488,553 as at December 31, 2022
and the Parent Company’s fair value adjustment on biclogical assets for the year then ended
in the statement of comprehensive income amounted to R7,643,425. The valuation of
biological assets is significant to our audit because the estimation process involves significant
managemant estimate. The key assumptions for the fair value of the biclogical assets include
the agricultural products future selling prices, estimated yield and future growing costs.

The disclosures on the fair value of biclogical assets are included in Motes 4 and 14 to the
notes to Parent Company financial statements.

Our Response

We obtained an understanding of management’s fair value measurement methodology and
thair process in valuing the biological assets. We tested the key assumptions used in the
valuation, which include the future selling prices, estimated vield and future growing costs,
by comparing them to external data such as selling prices in the principal market and historical
information. We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures on the assumptions
underlying the measurament of these bioclogical assets.

Other fnformation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the SEC Form 20-1S {(Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form
17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2022, but does not include the
financial statements and owr auditor's report thereon. The SEC Form 20-15 (Definitive
Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31,
2022 are axpected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion theraon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read tha other
information identified above when it becomaes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such intermal control as Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statermnents that are free from
material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either
intends to liquidate the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Parent Company’s financial
reparting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that incledes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high-level assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit is conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect
a material misstatement when it axists, Mizstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considared material if, individually or in tha aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic dacisions of the users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Asg part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
to obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
rasulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
proceduras that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parent Company’s intemnal control.

# Evaluste the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related dizclosures made by Management.



s« Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial stataments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of the
auditor's report. Future events or conditions may cause the Parent Company 1o cease 1o
continue as a going concern.

#* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those cherged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during owr audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compliad with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govermance, we determing thosa
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's raport
unlass law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremaly
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public intarast of such communication,

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulation 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information under Revenue Regulations
15-2010 and 19-2011 in Notes 29 and 30 to the financial statement is presented for purposes
of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial
stataments, Such information is the responsibility of the Management of AGRINURTURE, INC.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic
financial staterments. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all matarial respects in
ralation to the basic financial statements taken as whole.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
REAN G. ABALODS.
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AGRINURTURE; INC.

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEHMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Amaunis in Fhilippine Pesos)

Notes 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cazh & 61,048,802 46,022,124
Trade and other receivables - net 7 286,668,576 359,592,716
Dwie Iroem related parties — net L 1,321,093,655 1,331,589, 782
I Eniories -} 45, 506,258 £2.337,732
Prapivments and olher Surrent ssets 5 129,405,293 122141871
—Total Current Assats 1,843,722,674 1,901,684,225
Moncurrent Assets
Inwastment n subsidaries = nel 10 1,037 137,690 1,037 137,690
Progarty and eqguipment = niet 11 256, 740,892 272,810,381
Right-of-usn assets = net 22 59,242,274 TE.126,459
Biological assets 13 49 488,553 41,845,128
Deposits and iInvestments 14 620,212,402 619,545,121
Lomputer software - net 13 19,956 J008
— T4 NoncLrment AFpety L0249 76T 2 0OF047188
2966573 441 3930156108,
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trads and othar payablos 15 97,857,708 72,265 076
Borrowings 16 811,554,708 Q26,220 BE0
Giue to related parties i ] 90,924 076 18,176,443
JIncame tax payalie 230,426 L7345
o Total Cuirrent |isbilities 1000665 618 1017043833
MNoncurrant Liabilities
Bormowings: - net of current portion 16 - 29,053,571
Deferred taxes - mHot 23 14,467,352 24,316,714
Retirement benefit lability £l HE L —
— Total Soncurrent Lisbilities 30,000,094  GEIVLIGD
____Total Uabliities 1,030,704, 812 1,084,315000
Eguiity
Capital stock P1 par walus
Common m FI nlfnhu
-h.lh:mud J000,000 and 2,000,000,000 shares
- l l- JE IS shared in HI-E! and 2021
l.mn.ul LT LR | LTS L, e Ui
P1%1,615,200 In 2022
and P193,672 800 R 202 1} 24 832 831 688 832831 688
Preferred HII.I"H- FI:I i
AATONIed - m-m: and nil @ 2022
H'rd.!tl!l
ﬁ 000 shares and nil In 2022
|n|;|- 2021, rﬂﬂu:l:lu'ﬂqr 24 40,000,000 =
Additional paid-in capital 24 3,602,050,960 3,602
Deficit (1,595,164, 577) [ E“.-IHE 5355
Revaluation surpius = net 11 58,378,205 64,066,295
Net cumulative remeasurement gainfloss 5 :
00 retinemant bangiity L2008 847) 2 (30623000
Total Equity 2935, 867,629  2B6T 841106
N e L N NN
r—

Lev SCOTRIN PR VO T2 FREnT vy nancis! STeeTens.




AGRINURTURE, INC.

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

fAmounts in Philippine Pesos)

Nobes 2023 2021
NET REVENUE 17 1,486,712,450 1,877,012,914
COST OF SALES 18 1,310 468,167 1,703,669,638
GROSS INCOME 176,244,283 173,343,276
GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPEMSES 19 112,706,447 109,452 495
OPERATING INCOME 63,537,836 563,890, 781
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Other income 2,315,656 3,451,542
Rental Income 22 1,228,069 1,155,465
Interest incame L 11,920 21,787
Reversal of allowance for impalrment 7 - 68,867,752
Gain on change in fair value of blologlcal asset 13 7,643,425 11,845,128
Forgign exchange loss = net 26 5,043,808 [3,446,542]
16,252,878 81,865,136
FINAMCE COSTS 16 57,310,305 41,087,552
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 22,480,409 104,698,365
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT) 23
Current 4,420,687 8,328,682
Deferred {7,217,1156) (524,355)
[2,796,429) 7,804,337
HET INCOME 25,276,838 96,894,028
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [LOSS)
Not reclassificable to profit or loss
Revaluation Surplus 11 (7:584,120) 56,297,557
Deferred income tax benefit 23 1,596,030 (12,618,181)
{5 6B8,090) 43,679,376
HEMEATUrament gam (105s) on
retirernent benefits - net 21 B53,655 (3,694,005
(4,834, 435) 39,985 371
TOTAL COMFREHENSIVE INCOME 20,442 403 136|ﬂ?9:3?9
A T T

Sad Acrompaying Mobes o Farent Company Financisl Statements.



AGRINURTURE, INC.

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Nobes 2023 2021
CAPITAL STOCK 24
Common sharas = PI par value
Balance at beginning and end of year B32,831,688 830,774,088
Paid-up during the year = 2,057,600
Balance at end of year 832 831,688 832,831,688
Prefprred shares - PO, 10 par value
Balance at beginning and end of year = -
Faid-up during the year 40,000,000 =
Balance at end of year 40,000,000 &
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 24
Balance at beginning of year 3,602,050,960 3,567,071,761
Additions during the year - 34,979,199
Balance at end of year 3,602,050,960 3,602 050,960
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year {1,628,045,535) (1,732,953,938)
Het income 25,276,838 96,854,028
Other comprghensive Rcome 11 7.584.120 8,014,373
Balance at end of year f!lﬁﬂﬁlllﬂ,:ﬂ'?} {1,628,045,535)
REVALUATION SURPLUS - NET OF DEFERRED TAX 11
Balance at beginning of year 64,066,295 20,386,919
comprehensive income (loss) {5,688 090} 43,679 376
Balance at end of year 58,378,205 64,066,295
MHET CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT LOSS
ON RETIREMENT BENEFITS 21
Balance at beginning of year {3,062,302) 631,703
Rarmaasurement gain (loss) B53,655 (3,604 005}
Balance at end of year (2,208,647 2
JOTALEQUITY __ 2,935867,629 __2,867,841,106

Sav BecomiunTing Mahis [ Farend Company Financln Statements.



AGRINURTURE, INC.

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2033 AND 2071

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

fotes 2022 031
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
bncome befang imoooms [ax 2T A80 400 104, 6598, 365
Adjustments for:
Finange cost 16 57,310,305 41,087,552
Depreciation and amortizatian 18,19 3T, 757477 38,620,652
Retrement beneflit 19,21 1,688 397 2,403,177
Het unrealized forglgn Exchangs kg 26 (7,602,070) 3,017,705
Interest income ] {11,920} {21, 7487)
Gaim gn change in fair valee of biological asset 13 (7,643,425) (11,545,128)
—Faveresl of impairemant logoes s s {EELBEYTS]
Operating income before woricing capital changes 104,979,164 109,092,784
Changes in operating assets and Babilikies:
Decrease (Increags) in:
Tragde and cther rectivabies (20,240,005 ) {93,554, 308)
Invenkores 6,831,474 {22,191 483)
Prepayments and cther current assels (9,870,351} {13,108.913)
iEERiE (Dhiranas) B trpde gthier pavables 23,373,921 (3735100
Mk cash provided by (used in) aperations 104,574,203 {23,497,019)
Interest paid 18 [54,991,594) {43, 266.237)
Income taxes paid (2, 758,0856) (B, 687, 544)
Interest received 6 11,920 21,787
Het cach fows provided by {used in) operating sctivities 47,336,443 (75,438,013}
CASH FLOWS FROM TNVESTING ACTIVITIES
CoBpctions froim; 20
Shockholgers 52, 7T 458 200347 993
Agiaked parties 33,148, 3486 39,507,164
Additheng 1o dapodis and irvestmsents 14 = (B, 144, 005)
Disposal of property and equipment ii - 283,700
Acnuisition of bicdogical assets 13 = (30,0020, 000}
Addnicns 1o pompuber sollwans 12 [23,038) ;-
Additiors o property and equipmeent 11 (1,805 810} (B69,823)
Advances [o; 0
Stockholders Eli.llﬁ.mg (81,230,155}
—Ralated parties
Het cash used bn irmvesting acthities (1,332,528} [119,443,635)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advanoes recehved from: 0
Stockholders 45,761,230 714,043
Related parties 27,251,558 -
Payments to: 20
(65 850 =
Related parties {195, 505) ({710,800}
Proceads from awalments of losnsg 16 L7, 300, 0:0:0 334,600, 000
I=susnce of shares of stock 24 40, D00, 00 2,057, E00
Addkional palkd-in capital i:; = H.!?g.t'iﬂ
Jayments of barrpwings (331037, 723) (A5 347 353
e cagh Mo prosdded by [ised ind fnancing aotivitkes [30,980,080) 322393781
EFFECTS OFF EXCHAMNGE RATE
_ CHAMGES OM CASH 5,26 103,947 2590
HET INCREASE IM CASH 15,026,768 27,523,523
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 46,022,124 18,458,601
SR ST END QFYEAR B O e e 020,128

ora arramzamping Neoe fn Pacen! Dosspasy Frandia! Lhitemesd



Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

Az gt Decembar 31, 2022
{ln Praipperss Pasa)

AGRINURTURE, INC.
Makati City

Unappropriated Retained Eamings, as adjusted to available for
dividend distribution, beginning of the year

Add:

Less:

Het income actually earnedirealized during the period

Hel income during the period closed to Relained Eamings
Hon-actuallunrealized income net of tax:

Hei defermed lax assels

Accruad reni resulting from straight-Sne recognition of rent iIncome
under FFRS 16, Leazes

Unreadized achumnal gain

Fair value adjustmant {market-to-market gains)

Fair value adjusiment of Biclogical Assets resulting to gain
Adjusirnent due to deviation from PFRE/GAAP- gain

Cither unrealized gains or adjustmants 1o the retained eamings

as a result of canain transactions accounted for under PFRS
Sub-todal

Mon-actual losses

Depreciation on revaluabion mcrement (after tax)
Adjustment dus to deviation from PFREIGAAP- loss
Less on fair value adjustment of investment proparty {after tax)

Sub-total

Net income actually earned during the period
Add (Less):

Dividend declarations during the period
Appropriations of Retained Eamings during the period
Reversals of appropriations

Effects of prior period adjusiments

Treasury shares
Sub-todal

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF THE YEAR
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND

{1,628,045,535)

5,688,000

5,888,090

15,719,424

{1,612,326,111)




AGRINURTURE, INC.
NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

1. Corporate Information

AgriNurture, Inc. {the "Parent Company") was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 4, 1997 to engage in
corporate farming, in all its branches for the planting, growing, cultivating and
producing of crops, plants and fruit bearing trees, of all kinds and in connection to
engage in agri-tourism and other pleasurable pursuits for the enjoyments and
appreciation of mother nature and ecology and to engage in the establishment,
operation and maintenance of eguipment, structures and facilities for the preservation,
conservation and storage of foods, grains and supplies;, like celd storage and
refrigeration plants.

The Parent Company's secondary purpose includes, among others, to purchase, acquire,
lease, sell and convey real properties such as lands, buildings, factories and warehouses
and machines, equipment and other personal properties as may be necessary or
incidental to the conduct of the corporate business, and to pay in cash, shares of capital
stock, debentures and other evidences of indebtedness, or other securitles, as may be
deemed expedient for any business or property acquired by the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has been incurring operating losses in prior years which
resulbed to accumulated losses amounting to P1,595,184,577 and P1,628,045,535
as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. To recover from losses, the Parent
Company continucusly expands its core business and increase coverage in the
distribution

(fruits and vegetables, rice) and export sales channels. Its retail arm is expanding the
franchise network with plans to cover not only the Philippines but overseas as well.
The Parent Company has started an active campaign to gain new markets and
recover clients through marketing and selling activities in the Philippines and
oversoas. Part of these activities includes looking for more opportunities in the greater
Middle East, China and Asian market. Moreover, most loans were already converted to
term loans in order to increase the flexibility of the Parent Company's capital and
minimize the immediate impact on operational cash flows. Furthermaore, the Parént
Company shall continue the rationalization, consolidation, and reorganization of
operations to improve efficiency, lower cost of sales and operating expenses,
Further, the Parent Company launched its own e-commerce platform through its moblle
application and AMI Express website where customers can order fresh produce, canned
beverages, rice and other essential goods for delivery to customeanrs.

On March 27, 2023, the Parent Company's application for equity restructuring to
wipe-out the deficit as of December 31, 2021 in the amount of P1,628,045,535
agalnst the additional paid-in capital (APIC) of P3,602,050,960 was approved
considering that all the requirements have been complied with provided that the
remaining APIC of P1,974,005,425 cannot be applied for future losses that may be
incurred by the Parent Company without prier approval of the SEC,

The ability of the Parent Company to continue as a going concern will depend greatly
on the immediate implementation of its projects and eventual start of operations
involving these projects. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that
might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.




The followlng are the recent developments to continuows business expansion:

On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the Board and the Shareholders of
the Parent Company, respectively, have approved the [ssuance of shares to
Plentex Philippines, Inc. (*Plentex”). Plentex has subscribed for 6,172,800 shares
and the Parent Company has agreed to issue the same at 8 value of P18.00 per
share which is to be paid through the issuance of 30,000,000 shares of Plentex
Limited.

Plentex is a Philippine Corporation that is developing a substantial large scale
agri-business center in Tacloban, Leyte. Plentex is & subsidiary of Plentex Limited,
unlisted Australian public company in Victoria, Australia.

As at date of report, the 6,172,800 shares were subscribed and 2,057,600 shares were
paid.

On February 1, 2021, the Parent Company entered Into a Memorandum of
Agreement ("MOA"} with the Unified Bagobo-Tagabawa Tribe ("UBTT") and the
Mational Commission on Indigenous Peoples ("NCIP") to promote inclusive
agricultural and economic growth by pursuing land productivity thru the
development of rice and corn plantation in Bansalan, Davag del Sur. The Parent
Company will invest in the development, operation and management of the rice and
corn plantation, while the UBTT will be entitled to an annual royalty fee and annual
net profit share in the project. Further, all employment and labor requirements of
the project shall be primarily sourced from the UBTT. NCIP shall monitor and
evaluate compliance of the parties In the terms and conditions of the MOA.
The Parent Company, along with the project shall develop programs on health, skills
development and alternative livelihood for the communities, The parties; in
collaboration with other national government agencles, shall likewise conduct tree
planting activities in at least two thousand (2,000) hectares of land.

As at date of report, the parties have complied with the requirements to fully
execute the agreement, including but not limited to the Free and Prior Informed
Consent {FPIC), as indicated by the issuance of a Certification Precondition by
tha NCIP.

On May 12, 2021, the Parent Company received a Medium Green Rating from Cicero
Shades of Green for its Green Bond offering. Cicero Shades of Green is a subsidiary
of the climate research institute CICERD. It provides independent, research-based
evaluations of green bond investment frameworks to determine their environmental
stremgth,

The Parent Company has previously secured the authority to issue long term Green
Bonds of up to 75 million euro with maturity of up to 7 years, including the
issuance of commercial papers, with terms and conditions to be recommended by
management and to be approved by the BOD. The issuance shall fund the
agricultural project expansion of the Parent Company geared towards climate
change adaptation and minimized environmental footprint.

As at reporting date, the Parent Company is completing the documentary
requirements and securing necessary board approval for the incorporation of a
wholly-owned foreign subsidiary for the issuance of green bonds.




= On March 20, 2020, the Parent Company's BOD approved the amendment in the
terms and conditions of the following Issuances and listing of warrants:

Issuance and listing of up to 10,000,000 stock warrants In favor of the Parent
Company's employees credit cooperative as approved by the BOD on
February 12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of isswance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon conversion. Expiry date and other
relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to the
approval of the SEC.

Issuamce and listing of stock warrants in favor of existing stockholders as of record
date as approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
welghted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. Existing stockholders owning
10 comman shares as of record date, shall be entitled to 1 warrant. The ratio
shall be 1 warrant equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon conversion.
Record date, expiry date and other relevant terms and conditions shall be
determined by the BOD.

Issuance and listing of stock warrants in favor of current directors as approved
by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
weighted average volume trade of 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 vears from date of issuance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon conversion, Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD.
Each director serving at the time of Issuance s entitled to up to 100,000
warrants.

Issuance and listing of 10,000,000 stock warranks in faver of ANI Foundation
as approved by the BOD on April 30, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the
welghted average volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be
exercised after 5 years from date of Issuance. The ratic shall be 1 warrant
equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon conversion. Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditicns shall be determined by the BOD, The issuance
and listing of the warrants shall be for the purpose of generating funds for the
corporate social responsibility programs of the Parent Company.

On October 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the Group’s BOD and shareholders,
respectively, approved the amendment/s to the terms and conditions of the Issuance
of warrants to existing shareholders to be bundled to the Company’s Stock Rights
Offering. The issuance to shareholders participating in the Stock Rights
Offering, with every shareholder avalling of three (3) Stock Rights, shall be
entitied to one (1) warrant. The ratio shall be one (1) warrant equivalent to
one (1) underlying common share upon conversion. The warrants shall have
the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the volume weighted average
price of trade fifteen (15) days prior to maturity, to be exercised after five (5)
vears from date of listing.



On October 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the BOD and the shareholders of the
Parent Company, respectively, approved the increase of the Parent Company's
authorized capital stock from P2,000,000,000.00 to up to PS,000,000,000.00.
The increase Is intended for any future capital raising activities. This is also in
anticipation of the Issuance of warrants and stock rights offer of 288,000,027 commaon
shares from the Parent Company’s existing capital stock.

= On May 5, 2020, the Parent Company has entered into a MOA with the
Department of Agriculture {DA). Under the Agreement, the Parent Company shall
be an official program partner-participant of DA's e-KADIWA ni Ani at Kita
Program. As such, ANI becomes an online seller of agricultural products.

The DA's KADIWA ni Ani at Kita Program is a market system which facilitates the
selling of major agricultural goods at reasonably low prices to the consuming
pubdlic through partnership with Local Govermment Units and the Private Sectors.
To further the services of the KADIWA ni Ani at Kita Program, the DA has launched
the e-KADIWA, an online market portal or platform whereby buyers and sellers
of agricultural and fishery products can transact online.

AS at reporting date, the Parent Company is actively participating in the foregoing
program through its ANI Express online platform.

= On Movember 26, 2020, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with the
Philippine Intermnmational Trading Corporation ("PITC®) to collaborate on the
importation of raw materials to provide healthier and more affordable "BigMa®
Bigas=-Mais (rice-corn) blend to the Fillipino consumers. The Parent Company s
sat to locally produce with its corm contract growers and Include in its product
portfolio the "BigMa" brand. The "BigMa" or Blgas-Mals blend is a Low Glycemic
and rich in dietary fiber staple food alternative for the Filipino consumers.

With the production of BigMa, the Parent Company will be able to reduce carbon
foot print, provide more livelihood to local farmers as the source of "Mais”, help
the country achieve food-staple sufficiency faster, while providing a healthier and
affordable option to the public,

As at reporting date, the Parent Company made its initial shipment through the
foregoing collaboration during the 1st quarter of 2021.

«  On October 13, 2018, the Parent Company entered into a joint venture agreement
for a development of the property, located in Taytay Rizal, bisected by the
Manggahan Floodway. The property covers BS9 hectares more or less of which
Is cowvered by titlesunder different names, all of which are either directly or
indirectly under the third-party individual. Each square meter is valued at 1,500.
The joint venture shall include but not limited to the formation of the following:
Phase 1 - Transportation Hub, Phase 2 - Food Terminal and Phase Property
Development Corporation. As atDecember 31, 2022, the Parent Company has
made deposits totaling RS08,700,000 for the acquisition to the 859 hectares,
corresponding to portions thereof, As at reporting date, the third party is still
completing the titling of the whole portion of the property until end of the third
quarter to fully execute the joint wventure agreement. The parties are in the
process of executing the projects under the Joint Venture Agreement. Also, the
masterplan for the design of the food terminal were already completed
(see Note 14),

= On October 25, 2018 the Board of Directors of the Parent Company authorizes
the expansion of business operations in Australia through acquisition of existing
companies, Accordingly, on December 28, 2018 the Parent Company made a
deposit amounted to AUD172,000 or 6,300,000 to BSK Pty Ltd (see Note 14).
The main activity of the Australian operations is primarily precessing of fruit and
vegetables for distribution to food processors, scheols, restaurants, mining sites
and airdines. As at reporting date, Itis already In the process of finalizing the
acquisition agreement,




« On November 8, 2018 the Parent Company has signed a 1.9 billlon deal with a
Chinese Company for the purchase of various agriculture produce particularly
tropical fruits. The contract was signed with SinoChem Group (SinoChem),
a Beijing based conglomerate engaged in the production and trading of
chemicals, fertilizers and other agricultural products. Under the agreement,
SinoChem will buy tropical fruits from the Parent Company's contract growers in
the Philippines in the next three years. SinoChem will also provide support through
the supply of affordable fertilizers, The deal alms to provide support to local farmears
and boost country's market access to China.

Dua to the health and mobility restriciions brought about by the COVID-19
pandemic, both parties opted to defer the implementation of the agresment in
2021 and plan to finalize the terms thereof in 2022, The parties intend to utilize
this deal in the Big-Ma (rice-corn mix) Project and expansion of banana
plantation.

= On December 20, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved
joint venture or any similar engagement with Department of Justice through
Bureau of Corrections for the development of at least 2,000 hectares of
integrated Agri-Tourism corn plantation in Palawan. The Parent Company will
fund the development while the Bureau of Corrections will provide the land. The
proposed joint venture is intended to expand the Parent Company's business
through corn production and agri-tourism. As at reporting date, the Bureau of
Corrections is awaiting the endorsement of the agreement by the Department of
Justice to finalize the transaction. Also, due ko the health and mobility restrictions
brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, the implementation of the agreement in
2020 was deferred. As of reporting period, the Parent Company has yet to receive
the opinion from the Bureau of Justice.

On February 24, 2020, the Board has approved the decrease in the par value of the
shares of the Parent Company from one peso (P1.00) te ten centaves (PO.10).
The Board has likewise approved the reclassification of 40,000,000 unissued commaon
shares with par value of one peso [P1.00) per share or an aggregate par value of
40,000,000 to 400,000,000 voting preferred shares with par wvalue of ben
centavos (PD.10) per share or an aggregate par value of 40, 000,000 subject to the
approval of the SEC.

Upon approval of the SEC, the Parent Company’'s authorized capital stock will increase

to 20,000,000,000 shares for a total par value of 2,000,000,000 shall be divided into

the following:

a. Common shares, consisting of 19,600,000,000 shares with a par value of ten
centaves (PO.10) per share for a total par value of 1,960,000,000;

b. Preferred shares, consisting of 400,000,000 shares with a par value of ten centavos
(PD.10) per share for a total par value of 40,000,000;

The preferred shares shall have the following rights, privileges, limitations and
restrictions which shall also appear on the Certificates of the Preferred Shares of the

Corporation:

a. The right to wote and be voted for;

b. The right to receive, out of unrestricted retained earnings of the Parent
Company, participating dividends at the rate as may be deemed proper by the
BOD under the prevailing market conditions or such other relevant factors as the
BOD may consider, Said dividend may be declared and payable at the discretion of
the BOD after taking inmto account the Parent Company's earning, cash flows,
financlal conditions and other factors as the BOD may consider relevant; and




. In the liquidation, dissolution and winding up the Parent Company, whether
voluntary or otherwise, the right to be paid in full or ratably, insofar as the assets
of the Parent Company will permit, the par value or face value of each preferred
share as the BOD may determine upon their issuance, plus unpaid and accrued
dividends up to the current dividend period, before any assets of the Parent
Company shall be paid or distributed to the holders of the common shares;

The commaon shares shall possess all the rights, privileges and prerogatives provided by
law; including the right to vote and be voted for.

The stockholders of the Parent Company shall have no pre-emptive right to subscibe
o or purchase any or all issues or dispositions of shares of any class of the Parent
Company.

The change in par value is intended to increase the number of shares of the Parent
Company that will give more trading opportunities to the shareholders and Investors.
The decrease in par value will make the shares more affordable to small investors,
hence will b more marketable and liquid in the market.

The reclassification is intended for any future capital raising activities. The amount
to be raised shall be used as additional working capital and funding for the Parent
Company"s expansion project particularly the creation of the Agricultural Ecosystem
to benefit local farmers.

As at reporting date, the approval for the decrease in the par value of the shares was
deferred by the stockholders.

On November 5, 2021, the Parent Company's BOD confirmed the approval of the
reclassification of the Parent Company’s 40,000,000 unissued common shares with par
value of #1.00 per share or an aggregate par value of P40,000,000 to 400,000,000
voting preferred shares with par value of 0,10 per share or an aggregate par value of
£40,000,000, to be subscribed by Earthright Haldings, Inc.

On November 16, 2022, the reclassification was likewlse approved by the SEC.

The Parent Company's registered principal office address is Mo. 54 Mational Road,
Dampol 11-A, Pulilan, Bulacan.

Authorization for Issuance of the Parent Company Financial Statements
The Parent Company's financial statements a5 at and for the year ended

December 31, 2022and 2021 were authorized for Issuance by the Board of Directors
{(BOD) on April 5, 2023,

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Parent Company have been prepared using the historical
cost basis, except for certain financial instruments carried at amortized cost,
inventories carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value, biological assets which
is presented at fair value less cost to sell, and property and equipment which Is presented
using revaluation modael.

The financial statements are presented in Philippine Pesos, which s the Parent
Company's functional and reporting currency under Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS). All values are rgpunded to the nearest peso, except when
otherwise indicated.

The Parent Company also prepares and issues consolidated fimancial stakements for the
same period as the Parent Company financial statements present, in compliance with
PFRS, which may be obtained from the SEC.




=tatement of Compliance

The accompanying Parent Company financial statements have been prepared in
compliance with PFRS. PFRS includes statements named PFRS and Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS), and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC),
Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) which have been approved by the Philippines Financial
and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council {(FSRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

3. Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

The Philippines Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council (FSRSC) approved
the issuance of new and revised Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term
"PFRS" in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and
Interpretations issued by the Philippine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee {IFRIC) which have been approved by the FSRSC and adopted by SEC.

These new and revised PFRS prescribe new accounting recognition, measurement and
disclosure requirements applicable to the Company. When applicable, the adoption of the new
standards was made in accordance with their transitional provisions, otherwise the adoption
Is accounted for as change In accounting policy under PAS B, Accounting Policles, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors.,

3.01 New and Revised PFRSs Applied with No Material Effect onm the Financial
Statements

The following new and revised PFRSs have been adopted in these financial statements. The
application of these new and revised PFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts
reported for the current and prior vears but may affect the accounting for future transactions
or arrangements.

= Amendments fo PFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
June 30, 2021

The following are the amendments to PFRS 16:

*  permit a lesses to apply the practical expedient regarding COVID=19-related rent
concessions to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022 {rather than only payments
originally due on or before June 30, 2021);

¥ require a lessee applying the amendment to do so for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2021;

¥*  require a lessee applying the amendment to do so retrospectively, recognizing the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained eamings (or other component of equity, as appropriate)
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the lessee first applies the
amendment; and

» specify that, in the reporting period in which a lessee first applies the amendment,
a lessee is not required to disclose the information required by paragraph 28(f) of
PAS B.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting perieds beginning on or after
April 1, 2021.



Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framewark

The following are the amendments in reference to the conceptual framework:

¥ update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of 1989
Framework;

® add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope
of PAS 37 or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the
Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination; and

¥ add to PFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognize contingent
assets acquired in a business combination,

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on  or  after
January 1, 2022, permitted if an entity also applies all other updated references
{published together with the updated Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier.

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts recelved from selling items produced while the company is preparing
the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognize such sales procesds and
related cost in profit or loss.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022. An entity applies the amendments retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary
for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the
entity first applies the amendments.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling & Contract

The ameéndments speclhy that the "cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the “costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a conkract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract {examples would be direct labor, materials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example wwould be
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are effective for annual perieds beginning on  or  after
Januwary 1, 2022. Entities apply the amendments to contracts for which the entity has mot
yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting peried In which the
entity first applies the amendments. Comparatives are not restated.

Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

= The amendment permits a

suba-ldlary l.'hal: appll-aa paragraph Dlﬁl[a] of FFFtE 1 ta aasura cumdulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent's date of
transition to PFRSs.

- 1"-he amgndment r:Iar'.lﬁes whhr_h fees an Enti‘l:\r includﬁ wh-en it applaes I:.he 'll] per mnt'
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of PFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability.
An entity Includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the
lender, including fees pald or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's

behalf,



= The amendment to [llustrative Example 13
accompanying PFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of the reimbursement
of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease Incentives that might arise because of how lease
incentives are illustrated in that example.

41, Taxation in fair value measurements - The amandment removes
the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technigue. This will
ensure consistency with the requirements in PFRS 13,

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022.

3.02 Mew and Revised PFRSS in Issue but Mot Yet Effective

The Parent Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below
when they become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the
adoption of these new and amended PFRS, to have significant impact on the financial
statements.

«  Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilitles as Current or Non-current

The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

* clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting pericd and align the
wording in all affected paragraphs to refer to the "right” to defer settlement by at
least twelve months and make explicit that only rights in place "at the end of the
reporting period” should affect the classification of a llabllity;

¥ dlarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability; and

*  make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, cther assets or services,

The amendments defer the effective date of the January 2020 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to PAS 1) to annual reporting pericds beginning
on or after January 1, 2023, Earier application of the Yanuary 2020 amendments continues
to be permitted.

+  Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The definition of accounting estimates has been amended as follows: accounting estimates
are "monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainky”,

The amendment also clarifies the following:

¥ Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require ibems in financial
statements bo be measured in & way that involves measurement uncertainty.

* A change In accounting estimate that results from new information or new
developments is not the correction of an error, In addition, the effects of a change
in an input or a measurement technigue used to develop an accounting estimate arg
changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior
pariod errors,



¥# A change In an accounting estimate may affect only the current period's profit or
loss, or the profit or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of
the change relating to the current period s recognized as income or expense in the
current period. The effect, If any, on future periods is recognized as Income or
expense in those future periods.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023 and changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period.

Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure Initiative - Accounting
Policies

The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

¥ an entity is now required to disclose its material accounting pelicy Information
Instead of its significant accounting policies;

¥ several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material
accounting policy information and to give examples of when accounting policy
information is likely ta be material;

The amendments also clarify the following:

¥ accounting policy information may be materdal because of its nature, even If the
related amounts ane immaterial;

* accounting policy information is material if users of an entity's financial statements
would need it to understand other material information in the financial statements;
and

¥ ifan entity discloses immaterial accounting policy infermation, such information shall
not obscure material accounting policy Information,

In addition, PFRS Practice Statement 2 has been amended by adding guidance and
examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the “four-step materiality process’
to accounting policy Information in order b0 support the amendments to PAS 1.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after January
1, 2023.

Amendment to PAS 12, "Deferred tax relabed to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction”

The amendments introduce an exception to the initial recognition exemption [IRE) in
PAS 12, Additional exclusions have been added to the IRE, detailed in paragraphs 15{b){ili)
and 24(c)} for deferred tax liabilities and assets respectively. The effects of these
amendments essentially mean that the IRE is not available for transactions which involve
the recognition of both an asset and liability = which in turmn leads to equal and cpposite
temporary differences - such that deferred taxes are calculated and booked for both
temporary differences, both at initial recognition and subsequently. Applying this
exception; an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,

The initial recognition exemption was initially included within PAS 12 to prevent a lack of
reporting transparency for transactions which are not business combinations and,
at the time of the transaction, do not affect either acoounting or taxable profits.
Under this exemption, deferred tax assets/liabilities would neither be recognized at initial
recognition of the underlying asset/liability, nor subsequently.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, the amendments also apply to taxable and
deductible temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
and decommissioning cbligations and corresponding amounts recognized as assets at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
1, 2023. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

Amendment to PFRS 17, "Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS 9—Comparative
Information™

The amendment is a transition option relating to comparative information about financial
assets presented on initial application of PFRS 17. The amendment is aimed at helping
entities to avold temporary accounting mismatches between financial assets and Insurance
contract liabilities, and therefore Improve the usefulness of comparative information for
users of financial statements,

PFRS 17 incorporating the amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2025.

PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 sets out the requirements that an entity should apply in reporting information
about Insurance contracts it issues and reinsurance contracts it holds. It requires an entity
that issues Insurance contracts to report them on the balance sheet as the total of the
fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin, It requires an entity to provide
information that distinguishes two ways Iinsurers sarn profits from Insurance contracts:
the insurance service result and the financial result. It requires an entity to report as
insurance revenue the amount charged for insurance coverage when it is earned, rather
than when the entity receives premium. It requires that insurance revenue to exclude the
deposits that represent the investment of the policyholder, rather than an amount charged
for services, Similarly, it requires the entity to present deposit repayments as settlements
of liabllities rather than as insurance expense.

PFRS 17 is effective for annual periods beginming on or after January 1, 2025,
Early application Is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 9 Financlal Instruments and PFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers on or before the date of initial application of
PFRS 17.

An entity shall apply PFRS 17 retrospectively unless impracticable, except that an entity is
not required to present the quantitative information required by paragraph 28(1 of PAS B
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and an entity shall not
apply the option in paragraph B115 for periods before the date of initial application of PFRS
17, If, and only If, it is impracticable, an entity shall apply either the modified retrospective
approach or the falr value approach.

Amendments to PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
The amendments cover the following areas;
¥ Insurance acquisition cash flows for renewals outside the contract boundary;
¥ Reinsurance contracts held—onerous underlying Insurance contracts;
¥ Relnsurance contracts held—underlying insurance contracts with direct participation
features; and
¥ Recognition of the contractual service margin in profit or loss in the general madel,

The amendments are effective to annual reporting pericds beginning on or afber
January 1, 2025,
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3.02.02 Deferred

=  Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assats between an Investor
and itz Associate or Joint Venlure

The amendments clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate and joint venture, This requires an investor in its financial
statements to recognize in full the gains and losses arising from the sale or contribution
of assets that constitute a business while recognize partial gains and losses If the assets
do not constitute a business {i.e. up to the extent only of unrelated investor share).

On January 13, 2016, the FSRSC decided to postpone the original effective date of January
1, 2016 of the sald amendments until the IASB has completed its broader review of the
research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting
for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint venbures.

4, Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Principal accounting and finandcal reporting policies applied by the Parent Company in the
preparation of its financial statements are enumerated below and are consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otheérwise stated.

4.01 Fair Value Measuremant

Fair walue is the price thakt would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value the Parent Company takes into consideration the characteristics
of the asset or liability If market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the meaasurement date.

A falr value measureament assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or liability is
exchanged in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell the asset or transfer
the liability at the measurement date under current market conditions. In addition, it
assumes that the transaction takes place either: {a) in the principal market; or (b} in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

The Parent Company considers the fair value of an asset or a liability using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset In Its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset In its highest and best use.

A fair value measurement assumes that a financlal or non-financial liability or an entity’s
own equity Instruments (e.g. equity interests issued as consideration in a business
combination) is transferred to a market participant at the measurement date, The transfer
of a liability or an entity's own equity instrument assumes the following:

= A liability would remain outstanding and the market participant transferee would be
required to fulfil the obligation. The liability would not be settled with the counterparty
or otherwise extinguished on the measurement date,

= An entity's own equity instrument would remain cutstanding and the market
participant transferee would take on the rights and responsibilities associated with the
instrument. The Instrument would not be cancelled or otherwise extinguished on the
measurement date.,

The Parent Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to guoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unocbservable inputs.

= Level 1 inputs are gquoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabllities that the entity can access at the measurement date,

» Level 2 Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly,

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

4.02 Financial Assets

The Parent Company recognizes a financial asset in its statements of financlal position when,
and only when, the Parent Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
imstrumemnt.

Except for trade receivables that do not have a significant financing companent, at initial
recognition, the Parent Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

At initial recognition, the Parent Company measures trade receivables that do not have a
significant financing component at their transaction price.

4.02.02 Classification
* Financial Asset at Amortized Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

» the financial azset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on spedified dates to cash
flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Parent Company's financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash in
banks, trade and other receivables (except advances to employeas), due from related
parties; due from stockholders and guaranty depesit presented under ‘prepayments and
other current assets".

&) Cash in Banks

Cash In banks pertain to cash deposits held at call with bank that are subject to
insignificant risk of change In valwe. This shall be measured at the undiscounted amount
of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or recelved.

and due from stockholders are recognized inmitially at the transaction price and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, lass
provision for Impairment. A provision for impairment of the foregoing receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Parent Company will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables,

¢l Guaranty Deposit

Guaranty deposits pertain to amount the amount surrendered to the Parent Company’'s
lessor as part of the lease agreement. This amount will ba refunded upon termination of
the contract. This is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.
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The Parent Company does not have financial assets measured at fair value elther through
profit and loss or through other comprehensive income in both years.

4.02.03 Reclassification

When, and only when, the Parent Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets it shall reclassify all affected financial assets in accordance with Note 4.02.02,
If the Parent Company recdassifies financial assets, it shall apply the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date. The Parent Company shall not restate any
previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

4.02.04 Effective [nterest Method

Interest income is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for: purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets and financial assets that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired but subsequently have become credit-impaired.

4.02.05 Impairment
The Parent Company measures expected losses of a finandial instrument in a way that reflects:

« An unblased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

¢ The time value of money; and

« Reasonable and supportable assumption that is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic
conditions.

The Parent Company adopted the following approaches in accounting for impairment,

«  Simplified Approach

The Parent Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal te lifetime
expected credit losses for trade recelvables. The Parent Company determines that a
financial asset s credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimabed future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred,
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes cbservable data about the
following events:

= Significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
« A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

#= The lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty’s financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; and

+« [t is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization.

« General Approach

The Parent Company applies general approach to cash in banks, other receivables, due
from related parties, due from stockholders and guaranty deposit presented under
prepayments and other current assets. At each reporting date, the Parent Company
measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk has not increased significantly, the
Parent Company measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month expected credit losses,

The Parent Company compares the risk of default cccurring as at the reperting date with
the risk of a default occurring as at the date of initial recognition and consider the
macro-economic factors such as GDP, interest, and inflation rates, the performance of
the counterparties’ industry, that is available without undue cost or effort, to determine
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk or not since initial recognition.
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The Parent Company determines that there has been a significant Increase in credit risk
when there is a skgnificant decline in the factors. The Parent Company assumes that the
credit risk on cash In banks has not increased significantly since initial recognition
because the financlal Instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date.

The Parent Company did not apply the 30 days past due rebuttable presumption because
based on the Company's historical experience, credit risk has not increased significantly
even the amounts are past due for more than 30 days.

If the Parent Company has measured the loss allowance at an amount equal to Iifetime
expected credit losses in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date, that the credit quality improves (i.e. there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition), then the Company shall measure the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 1Z-month expected credit losses at the current
reparting date,

The Parent Company reécognizes in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss,
the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date.

The Parent Company performs the assessment of significant increases in credit risk on
an individual basis by considering information that is indicative of significant increases
im credit risk.

The Parent Company did not apply the 90 days past due rebuttable presumption in
determining whether a financial asset is credit impaired and does not considers &
financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Parent Company may also consider a financial assat
to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Parent
Company is unlikely to receive the cutstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Parent Company.

The Parent Company determines that a financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financlal asset have oocurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

« Significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
« A breach of contract, such as a defaulk or past due event;

= The lender{s) of the counterparty, for econamic or contractual reasons relating
to the counterparty's financial difficulty, hawing granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; and

« It is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization.

4.02.06 Derecognition

The Parent Company derecognizes a financial asset when, and only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows of the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition. The difference between the cammying amount and the consideration
received is recognized in profit or loss.

4.02.07 Write-off

The Parent Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the
Parent Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof, A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
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4.03 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower between cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out method. The cost of inventories comprises cost of purchase, direct
labor, other direct costs and appropriate portion of fixed and variable gverhead expenses.
At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventory IS impaired,
the carrying amount s reduced to its selling price less costs to complete and sell:
the impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss,

When the circumstances that previously caused inventories to be impaired no longer exist or
when there is clear evidence of an increase in selling price less costs to complete and sell
because of changed is economic drcumstances, a reversal of the impairment is recognized so
that the new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised selling price less costs
to complete and sell. Any impairment reversal is recognized In profit or loss but is limited to
the amount of the original impairment boss recognized.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those Inventories Is recognized as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue s recognized.,

4.04 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

4.04.01 Prepayments

Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. These are Initially
recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash pald, Subsequently, these are charged
to profit or loss as they are consumed in operations or expire through passage of time.

These are classifled in the statements of financial position as current assets when the expenses
are expected to be Incurred within one (1) year or the Company's normal operating cycle,
whichever is longer. Otherwise, these are dassified as other non-current assets.

4.04.02 Input VAT
Input VAT arises from the purchase of goods or services.

For regular sales, input VAT is applied against output VAT. The remaining balance is
recoverable in future periods, This is carried at cost less allowancs for impairment loss, iF any,
Impairment 05 is recognized when input VAT can no longer be recoverad,

For zero rated sales, Iinput VAT is initially recorded as an asset and measured at the amount
of cash paid. Subsequently, the Parent Company may apply within two (2) years after the
close of the taxable quarter when such sale was made for the tax refund of creditable input
tax due or paid attributable to sales that are zero-rated or effectively zero-rated.

4,05 Investment in Subsidiaries

A subsidiary s an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, which is
controlled by another entity known as parent. Conkrol is the exposure or rights, to variable
returns from the involvement with an investee and the ability to affect those returns through
its power over an investes,

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted under the cost method. Under the cost method,
the Parent Company recognizes as income the dividends received that are distributed from
net accumulated earnings of the Investee since the date of acquisition by the investor.
Dividends recelved that are in excess of the eamings subsequent to the date of acquisition are
nat income and therefore considered as return or reduction of investment.

16



The Parent Company's subsidlaries are as follows:

Ownership
Subsidiary 2022 2021
Best Choice Harvest Agricultural Corporation (BCH) 100% 100%
First Class Agriculture Corporation (FCAC) 100% 100%
Agrinurture HK Holdings Ltd (ANI HK) L00%a 100%
MZ000 IMEX Company, Inc, (IMEX) 100% 100%
Fruitilicious Company, Inc. (FI) 100%s 100%
The Big Chill, Inc. (TBC) BO% 80%
Farmville Farming Co., Inc. (FFCI) 51% 51%
Zongshan Fucang Trade Co., Ltd. (ZFT) 519 51%

If the Parent Company loses control of a subsidiary, the Parent Company recognizes any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control is lost
or recognizes any resulting difference as a galn or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Parent Company.

4.06 Interests in Joint Arrangement

A joint arrangement s a contractual arrangement whereby the Company and other parties
have agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exist only when decisions about
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing. The sharing of control
is also known as joint control. A joint arrangement can either be a joint venture or a joint
aperation,

4.06.01 Joint Venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the Parent Company and ather parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
The Parent Company reports its interests in a joint venture using equity method, except when
the inwvestment |5 classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with PFRS 5, Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Under the equity method, an investment in joint venture is initially recognized in the
statements of financial position at cost and adjusted thersafter to recognize the Parent
Company's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate,
When the Parent Company's share of losses of a joint venbure exceeds the Parent Companys
interest in that joint wventure (which includes any long-berm intérésts that, in substance,
form part of the Parent Coampany’s net investment in the joint venture), the Parent Company
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to
the extent that the Parent Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture,

Any excess of the cost of acguisition over Parent Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the joint wventure recognized at the
date of acquisition Is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and kB assessed for impairment as part of that investment,
Any excess of the Parent Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities owver the cost of acquisition, after reassessment,
is recognized immediately in profit or loss,

Where the Parent Company transacts with its jointly controlled entities, unrealized profits and
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Parent Company’s interest in the joint venture.
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When the equity method Is discontinued Parent Company recognizes its retained interest at
fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the investment at the time the
equity method was discontinued and the fair value of retained interest plus any proceeds from
disposing of a part of interest Is recognized in profit or loss. Amounts that were previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the investment are accounted on the
h-u-Th; als would have been required if the investee had directly disposed of the related assets
orF liabllithes,

4.07 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are Initially measured at cost. The cost of an asset consists of its
purchase price and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition property and equipment are carried at
revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already
been recognized are added o the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
econamic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing
asset, will flow to the Parent Company. All other subsequent expenditures ane recognized as
expenses in the period in which those are incurred.

Property and equipment are stated in the statements of financial position at their revalued
amounts; being the fair value at the date of revaluation, determined from market-based
evidence by appraisal undertaken by professional appraisers, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such property and equipment is credited
to the properties revaluation surplus, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense, in which case the increass
is credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease
in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such revalued assets is charged as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus relating to a
previous revaluation of those assets. Rewvaluation surplus is transferred directly to retained
eamings as the asset is being used by the Parent Company.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 15 years
Store and warehouse equipment 3 to 5 years
Dellvery and transportation equipment It 12
Machinery and equipment Ito 12
Office furniture and fixtures 3to 12

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter between the improvements’ wseful
life of five (5) years or the lease term.

The property and equipment’s residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, If there is an indication of a significant
change since the last reporting date,

Depreciation on revalued assets is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remalning in the
revaluation reseérye |5 transferred directly to retained eamings.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirerment
of an asset Is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amaunt of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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4.08 Computer Software

Computer software acquired separately is initially carried at cost, Subsequently, computer
software with definite useful life is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of computer software is recognized on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five (5) years,

The estimated wseful life, residual value and amortization method are reviewed at the and of
each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis.

A computer software is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss,

4.09 Deposits and Investments

4.09.01 Peposit for Land Acquisition

Depesit for land acquisition which represents mainly the usufruct rights over a property are
initially stated at actual amount pald and subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment,

4.09,02 Deposit for Business Acquisition

Depesit for business acquisitions which are paid in view of call for the future investments are
initially stated at actual amount paid and subsequently recognized ak cost less any impairment.

4.09.03 Advances to Projects
Advances to projects pertains to unliquidated expenditures made for the processing fees in

connection with the investment of the Parent Company to a foreign company. This is initially
stabed at actual amount paid and subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment.

4.10 Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Parent Company assesses whether there is any indication that any
assets other than deferred tax assets, Inventories, blological assets, and financial assets that
are within the scope of PFRS 9, Fnancial Instrumenits may have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, i any. Where € is not possible to estimate the
recaverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified; assets are also allocated
to Individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount Is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thekr present wvalue using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less thamn its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense.

When an impalrment loss subsequently reverses, the camrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss 15 recognized as income,
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4.11 Biological Assets

Biological assets or agricultural produce are recognized only when the Parent Company
conkrols the assets as a result of past events, it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the assets will flow to the entity; and the fair value or cost of the assets can
be measured reliably,

The Parent Company measures its biological assets on initial recognition and at each reporting
date at their fair value less estimated costs to sell. Estimated costs to sell include commissions
to brokers and dealers, levies by requlatory agencies and commaodity exchanges, and transfer
taxes and duties.

Harvested agricultural produce are also carried at Fair value less estimated costs to sell at the
point of harvest,

The Parent Company classifies its biological assets between consumable and bearer biological
assets. Consumable biological assets are those that are to be harvested as agricultural
produce or sold as biological assets. The Company further classifies its bearer biological assets
between mature or immature biological assets.

Gains or lesses arising on Initial recognition of a biological asset at fair value less estimated
costs to sell and from a change in fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset
are Included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,

4,12 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred,
4.13 Financial Liabilities

4.13.01 Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Parent Company shall recognize a financial liability in its statements of financial position
when, and only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

AL initial recognition, the Parent Company shall measure a financial liability at its fair value
minus, in the case of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the liability.

4.13.02 Classification

The Parent Company shall classify all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at
amortized, except for:

« financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;

= financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing invelvement approach applies;

s financial guarantes contracts:
» commitments to provide a loan at a below-market inberest rate;
+« contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination.

The Parent Company’s financial [fabilities measured at amortized cost include trade and other
payables (excluding customers' deposit and government payables), borrowings and due to
related parties.

The Parent Company does not have financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in
both years.

4.13.03 Derecognition

The Parent Company removes a financlial Hability (or part of a financial lability) from its
statements of financial position when, and only when, it is extinguished (i.e., when the
obligation in the contract Is discharged or cancelled or expired).
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The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability {or part of a financial
liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

4.14 Contract Liability

The Parent Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
entity has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer,

These are initially recorded as liability and measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition,
revenue ks recognized when (or as) the Parent Company satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or services to a customer.,

4.15 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its Habllities, Equity instruments issued by the Parent Company
are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Additional paid-in capital represents the proceeds and/or fair value of consideration received
in excess of the par value of the shares issued,

4.16 Employee Benefits

4,16.01 Shord-term Benefils

The Parent Company recognizes a liability, net of amounts already paid and an expense for
services rendered by employees during the accounting pericd. Short-term benefits given by
the Parent Company to its employees include salaries and wages, direct labor, 555, HDMF,
FhilHealth employer contributions and 13" month bonus.

4.16.02 Post-employment Benafits

The Parent Company has an unfunded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan,
This benefit defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recelve on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation,

The cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method (PUCM)
which reflects services rendered by employess to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries. Post-employment expenses include
current service cost, past service cost, and net interest on defined benefit asset/liability.
Remeasurements which include cumulative actuarial gains and losses return on plan assets,
and changes in the effects of asset ceiling are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income and are also presented under equity in the statements of financial position.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity In cther comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss,

The liability recognized in the staterments of financial position in respect of defined benafit
pension plans 5 the present value of the accrued retirement benefits at the end of the
reporting period. The accrued retirement benefits is calculated annually by an independent
actuary using the PUCM. The present value of the accrued retirement benefits is determined
by discounting the estimated fubure cash outflows using interest rates based on the market
yields on government bonds as of the valuation dates that hawve terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

The Parent Company's retirement plan is still unfunded, benefit claims under the plan are paid
directly by the Parent Company when they bacome due.
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4.17 Provisions and Contingencies

4.17.01 Provigions

Provisions are recognized when the Parent Company has a present obligation, whether legal
or constructive, as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Parent Company will be

rﬁulred to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

The amount recognized as a provision |s the best estimate of the consideration required to
settie the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation, Where a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered frem a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursernent will be received and the amount of the recelvable can be measured reliably.

Provisions are réviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

4.17.02 Contingent Liabilities and Assels
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized because thelr existence will be confirmed

only by the occurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the centrel of the Parent Company.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embadying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.,
4.18 Revenue Recognition
The Parent Coempany shall recegnize revenue when [(or as) the Parent Company satisfies a

performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. asset) to a customer,
An asset is transferred when [or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Parent Company derives its revenue from sale of fruits, vegetables and beverages.
The Parent Company recognizes revenue at point in time, this is when;

=  The Company has a present right to payment for goods;

=  The Company has transferred physical possession of the goods;

=  The customer has accepbed the goods; and

#  The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset,
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The Parent Company should determine whether it is a principal or an agent in a transaction
through the nature of its promise In a performance obligation.

The Parent Company determines whether the nature of its promise s a performance
obligation to provide a specified service itself (i.e., the Parent Company is a principal) or to
arrange for the other party to provide those services (i.e., the Parent Company |5 an agent).

The Parent Company is a principal if it controls a promised service before it transfers the
service to a customer. [t recognizes revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for those services transferred.

The Parent Company is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision
of services by another party. It recognizes revenue in the amount of any fee or commission
to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the other party to provide its
services,
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4.18.03 Interes{ Income

Interest income is recognized when it s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Parent Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on & time proportion basis, by reference to the principal cutstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

4.18.04 Rental Incornme

The Company's policy for recognition of revenue from leases is disclosed in
Note 4,20.01.

4,19 Expense Recognition

Expense encompasses losses as well as those expenses that arise in the course of the ordinary
activities of the Parent Company.

The Parent Company récognizes expenses in the statements of comprehensive income when
a decrease in future econamic benefits related to a decrease in an asset or an increase of a
liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

4.20 Leases

4.20.01 The Company as Lessor

Rental income from leases is recognized on a stralght-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging a lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

4.20.02 The Parent Company as 8 Lesses

A lease |s defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
{the underlylng asset) for a period of time In exchange for consideration®.

To apply this definition the Parent Company assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether;

a, the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made
available to the Parent Company

b. the Parent Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights
within the defined scope of the contract

. the Parent Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use. The Company assess whether it has the right to direct *how and for
what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Right-of-Usa (ROU) Asset

At the commencement date, the Parent Company measures the ROU asset at cost, which
comprises of:

¢ initial measurement of the lease llability;

¢ any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any incentives
received;

» any initlal direct costs incurred by the Parent Campany;
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= an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The Parent Company incurs the obligation
for those costs either at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used
the underlying asset during a particular period.

Subsequent to initial recognition, ROU asset is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses,

The Parent Company depreciates the ROU asset on a stralght-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the ROU asset or the end of
the lease term. The Parent Company also assesses the ROU asset for Impairment when such
indicators exist.

The Parent Company has elected to account for short-term leases and low-value assets using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing ROU asset and lease liabllity, the payments in
relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

ROU asset is presented as a separate line item on the statements of financial position.

Lease Liabifity

At the commencement date, the Parent Company measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments unpald at that date, discounted using the interest rate impliclt In

the lease if that rate is readily available or if not, the Parent Company uses the incremental
borrowing rate.

At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term that are not paid at the commencement date:

+ fixed payments (induding In-substance fixed payments), less any incentives
receivable;

+  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement date;

«  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under the residual value guarantees;

= the exercise price of 8 purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lesses
exercising an option to terminate the lease,

After the commencement date, the Parent Company measures the leasea liability by:
* increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
» reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

«  remeasuring the carrying amount to reflact any reassessment or lease modifications
or to reflect in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Parent Company recognizes the amount of remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
is reduced ko zero and there is further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability,
the Parant Company recognizes any remalning amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss,

Subsequent to Initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest, It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or maodification, or if there
are changes In In-substance fixed payments, When the lease lability is remeasured,
the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the
right-of-use asset is already reduced o 2ero.

Lease liabilities are presented as a separate line itemn on the statements of financial position.
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4.21 Foreign Currency Transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the Parent Company, transactions in currencies other
than the Parent Company’s functional currency, Le., forelgn currencles, are recognized at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.,

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
4,22 Related Parties and Related Party Transactions

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Parent Company that is preparing
its financial statements. A person or a close member of that person's family is related to
Company if that person has control or joint control over the Parent Company, has significant
influence owver the Parent Company, or Is @ member of the key management personnel of tha
Company or of a parent of the Company,

An entity is related to the Parent Company if any of the following conditions applies:

= The entity and the Parent Company are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

* Omne entity is an assocciate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity s a member).

» Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

+  One entity Is a joint wenture of a third entity and the cther entity is an associate of
the third entity.

» The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of efther
the Parent Company or an entity related to the Parent Company. If the Parent
Company is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the

Company.
+ The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified abave,

« A person identified above has significant influence over the entity or is a mamber of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

* Management entity providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members, who may be expected to
influence, or be Influenced by, that person In their dealings with the Parent Company and
include that parson’s children and spouse or domestic partner; children of that person's spousa
or domestic partner; and dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
;la'tner.

A related party transaction is a transfer of rescurces, services or obligations between related
parties, regardiess of whether a price is charged,

4.23 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred taxes.

4.23.01 Current Tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported In the statements of comprehensive income because of ibems of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Parent Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

25



4.43.02 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabllities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax labilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits from excess Minimum Corporate
Income Tax (MCIT) over Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) and unused Net Operating Loss
Carry-over (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused MCIT and
unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized when it arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or labllity in & transaction that is not a businezs
combination and, at the time of the transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences are only recognized to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficlent taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recoverad,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In
the pericd In which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have besen enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Parent Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to set-off
current tax assets agalnst current tax liabllitles and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basks.

4.23.03 Current and Deferred Taxes for the Perad

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss,
ewcapt when they relate to items that are recognized outside profit or loss, whether in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognized outside
profit or loss,

4.23.04 Impact of Change in Tax Regime

Components of tax expense indude any adjustments recognized in the period for current tax
of prior period and the amount of deferred tax expense (income) relating to changes in tax
rates. The provision for current income tax during the year include the difference between
income tax per prior year financlal statements and prior year income tax returm.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of reporting period s remeasured using the new tax rates.
The impact of remeasurement Is recognized in profit or loss (i.e., provision for/benefit from
deferred income tax), unless it can be recognized in other comprehensive income or another
equity account as provided for in PAS 12.61A.

Any movement in deferred taxes arising from the change in tax rates that will form part of the
provision for/benefit from deferred taxes will be included as well in the effective tax rate
reconciliation.

4.24 Events after the Reporting Peried

The Parent Company identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting
period but before the date when the financial statements were authorized for issue.
Any subsequent events that provide additional information about the Parent Company’s
position at the reporting period, adjusting events, are reflected in the financial statements,
while subsequent events that do not require adjustments, non-adjusting events, are disclosed
in the notes to financial statements when material,



4.25 Changes In Accounting Policies

The adoption of the new and revised standards and as disclosed in Note 3.01 was made in
accordance with their transitional provisions, otherwise the adoption is accounted for as
change in accounting policy under PAS B, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors,

5.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the Parent Company's financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumpticns that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as
of the date of the financial statements. Actual resuits could differ from such estimates.

The effect of any changes in estimates will be recorded in the Parent Company's financial
statements when determinable.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experienceand other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the drcumstances,

In the process of applying the Parent Company's accounting policies, management has
made the following judgments, apart from those involving estimations which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determination of Control

The Parent Company determines control when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with an entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the equity. The Parent Company controls an entity if and
only if the Parent Company has all of the following:

a. Power over the entity;

b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and,

¢. The ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of the Parent
Company's returns.

The Parent Company regularly reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elemants of contral listed above, The Parent Company determined that it
exercises contral on all of its subsidiaries as it has all the elements of contral
listed above.

»  Delermination of Functional Currency
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the
Parent Company, the functional currency of the Parent Company has been
determined to be the Philippine Pesos,

The Company has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine Peso.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which
the Company gperates. The Company's functional currency is evidenced by its costs
of labor, and other costs of providing services and majority of its sales prices which
are denominated and settled in Philippine Peso.

= Classification of Financial Instruments and Measurement Criteria
The Parent Company’s classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial assets contractual cash flows characteristics of the Company’s
business model for managing them. The financial liability s classified in accordance
with the substance of the contractual agreement and the definition of financial
liability. The substance of financial liability, rather than its legal form, governs its
classification in the statements of financial pesition,
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The Parent Company determines the cdassification at initial recognition and
regvaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Parent Company carriés certain instruments at fair value and discloses also the
fair wvalues of financial instruments, which requires extensive use of accounting
estimates and judgment, While significant components of fair value measurement
were determined using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair
value would differ if the Parent Company utilized different valuation methodologies
and assumptions. Any changes in fair value of these financial assets and liabilities
would affect profit or loss and eguity.

The summary of the carrying values and fair values of the Parent Company’s financial
instruments as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 is shown in Note 25,

Identification of Contract with Customers

The Parent Company applied PFRS 15 guidance to a portfolio of exports and local
distributicn groups with similar characteristics as the Parent Company reasonably
expects that the effects on the financial statements of applying this guidance to the
portfolic would not differ materially from applying this guidance to the individual
contracts with the same contract provisions.

Identifying Performance Obligation

The Parent Company identifies performance obligations by considering whether the
promised goods or services in the contract are distinct goods or services.
A good or service is distinct when the customer can benefit from the good or service
on Its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the customer
and the Parent Company’s promise to transfer the good or service to the customer
iz separately |dentiflable from the other promises In the contract. The Parent
Company delivers the best guality preduce by exporting and locally distributing all
kinds of fruits and wvegetables and other agro products but its main products are
banana, mango, and coconut water. The Parent Company determined that the
delivered wvarious agro products are capable of being distinct and therefore
considered as separate performance obligations.

Determining the Classification of Leases - The Company as a Lessor

The Company classifies leases in accordance with the substance of the contractual
agreement and the transfer of the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of
the leased property. Leases, where management has determined that the risks and
rewards related to the leased property are transferred to the Company, are classified
as finance leases, On the other hand, leases entered into by the Company, where
management has determined that the risks and rewards of the leased proparty are
retained with the lessor, are accounted for as cperating leases,

The Company entered into an operating lease agreement as a lessor, As a lessor,
the Company has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets being leased out under operating lease agreements.

Rental income from lease of properties amounted to P1,228,069 and P1,155,469 in
2022 and 2021, respectively, as disclosed in Note 22,

Assessment of Principal-Agency Arrangement

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a customer,
the Parent Company shall determine whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e., the
entity is a principal} or to arrange for the other party to provide those goods or
services (i.e., the entity is an agent).

In 2022 and 2021, the Parent Company assessed that it is acting as a principal and
recognized commission expense from agency relationship amounting to P11,594,582
and P10,020,207, respectively, as disclosed in Note 18.
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Assessment of Joint Control

Joint comtrol is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. An entity has a control when it is exposed,
or has rights to variable returns from involvement with the arrangement and has
the ability to affect those returns through their power over the arrangement.

In both years, Management assessed that the contractual arrangement with a third
party and the landowners he represents gives both parties joint control since decision
about the relevant activities requires the unanimous consent of bath parties sharing
cantral,

Classification of Jaint Arrangement as a Joint Venture

The joint arrangement is classified into joint operations and joint ventures.
The joint operations are a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, refating to the arrangement while the joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. The joint arrangement agreed by the Parent
Company and a third party and the landowners he represents was mutually classified
by both parties as a joint venture,

Management believes that a joint venture arrangement will maintain the parties’
rights to net assets,

Assessment of 30 days Rebuttable Presumplion

The Parent Company determines when a significant Increase in credit fisk occurs on
its financial assets based on the credit Management practice of the Parent Company.
Management believes that the 30 days rebuttable presumption on determining
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk In financial assets s not
applicable because based on the Company's historical experience, credit risk has nat
increased significantly even the amounts are past due for more than 30 days.

Assessment of 90 days Rebuttable Presumption

The Company determines when a default occurs on its financial assets based on the
credit Management practice of the Parent Company. Management believes that the
90 days rebuttable presumption on determining whether financial assets are credit
impaired is not applicable because based on the Parent Company's historical
!xr:aﬂ!hr:m and aging schedules, past due amounts even over 90 days are still
collectible.

Detaermining whether or nol 8 Contract Contains a Lease

Management assessed that the lease of machinery, transportation equipment
qualified as a lease since each contract contains an identified asset, the Parent
Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic bemefits, and the
Parent Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout
the pericd of use.

Determining whether or not it Is Reasonably Certain that an Extension Option will be
Exercised and Termination Option will not be Exercised

Lease term is the non-cancellable period for which the Parent Company has the right
to use an Lease term is the non-cancellable period for which the Parent Company
has the right to use an underlying asset induding optional periods when the Parent
Company 15 reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend (or not to terminate)
a lease, The Company considers all relevant facts and circurmstances that create an
economic Incentive for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the lease
term and the enforceability of the option. The option to extend the leass term should
be included in the lease term if it Is reasonably certaln that the lessee will exercise
the option and the option is enforceable. The Group is required ko reassess the option
when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the control
of the lessee.
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For lease contracts entered into In both years, most are renewable by mutual
agreement, except for contracts which does not contain a provision on renewal
option. Management assessed that these lease contracts cannot be extended beyond
the non-cancelable lease period since such are not enforceable under the Philippine
law.

In both years, the Management used the lease term of four (4) to seven (7) years
in the computation of right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.

Assessment of Prowvision and Contingency

Judgement is exercised by Management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies, Policies on recognition of provision and contingencies are discussed
in Note 4.17 and disclosure on relevant provisions and contingencies are presented
in Moke 7,

Estimaltes
The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources of estimation uncertainty

at the end of financial reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles within the next financial year
are discussed in below and in the succeeding pages:

Estimation of Allowance for Impairment of Financial Assets

The Parent Company applies general approach for determining the expected credit
losses of cash in banks, nontrade receivables, due from related parties and
stockholders, and guaranty deposit. & credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are expected to be received discounted at the original effective interest
rate and contractual cash flows in accordance with the contract. The loss allowance
for financial assets Is based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected
Ioss rates,

Mo allowance for impairment of cash in banks and guaranty deposit was recognized
at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

In 2021, the Management decided to reverse the total amount of allowance
recognized on other recehvables since this |s guaranteed by a stockholder. Allowance
for impairment loss recegnized on due from related parties amounted to PS5, 317,809
as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 (see Note 20).

The Company applies the PFRS 9 simplified approach in trade receivables to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all receivables and financial
asset at amortized costs. The Company has established a provision matrix that s
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Detailed information
regarding the Company's impairment of financial assets is discussed in Note 26,

Allowance for impairment lesses on trade receivables as at December 31, 2022 and
2021 amounted P26,169,178 (see Note 7).

Estimation of Net Realizable Valve of Inventorfes

The Parent Company determines the net realizable value of inventories annually
in accordance with the accounting pelicy stated herein. In determining the net
realizable value, the Parent Company considers the current selling price of the
product and the estimated cost to sell.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, inventories amounted to P45,506,258 and
P52,337,732, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 8.
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Estimation of Allowance for Inventory Obsalescence

Provision is established based on specific identification of slow-moving, damaged
and obsolete inventories and charged to operations. In case there is write-off or
disposal of slow-moving items during the yvear, a reduction in the allowance for
obsolescence s made. Any increase in allowance for obsolescence would increase
operating expensesand decrease inventory. An ltem that is determined to have
zero recoverable value is written-off to expense.

in both years, Management believes the net realizable value of inventories
approximate thelr costs, thus, no allowance for decline in value was recognized.,
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, inventories amounted to P45,506,258 and
P52, 337,732, respectively, as disclosed in Note B.

Fair Value of Biological Assets

The Parent Company has adopted the fair value approach in determining the
carrying wvalue of its biclogical assets. The Parent Company determines its fair
value based on recent prices of similar assets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices. The amounts and timing of recorded changes in fair value for
any period would differ if the Company made different judgments and estimates
or utillzed different basis for determining fair value.

The fair value of biological assets was derived using the market approach.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carmmying amounts of blological assets
amounted to P49,488,553 and P41,845,12B, respectively, as disclosed in
Maote 13.

Estimating Useful Lives of ROU Assels, Property and Equipment and Compiter
Software

Useful lives of ROU assets, property and equipment and computer software are
estimated based on the period over which these assets are expected to be
available for use. Such estimation Is based on a collective assessment of Indusktry
practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets.
The estimated useful life of each asset is reviewed periodically and updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,
technical or commerclal obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the
asset. It is possible, howewver, that future results of operations could be
materially affected by changes in the amounts and timing of recorded expenses
brought about by changes In the factors mentioned abowve. Any reduction in tha
estimated wseful lives of property and eguipment would increase the Parent
Company's recorded operating expenses and decreasa on the related asset
accounts.

Based on management's assessment, there were no significant changes in the
astimated useful lives of these assets in 2022 and 2021,

Az of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of the Company's ROU
assets, depreciable property and equipment and computer software amounted to
P164,011,122 and P199,939,944, respectively, as disclosed in Notes 11, 12 and 22,

Estimating Impairment Losses on Property and Equipment

The Parent Company assesses impairment on property and equipment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset

may not be recoverable. The factors that the Parent Company considers impoartant

which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

o significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected
futureoperating results;

o significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the
strategy foroverall business; and

+ significant negative industry or economic trends.
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These assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An Impairment 055 would be recognized whenever evidence exists that the carmying
value is not recoverable. For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated from the continued use of the assets, the Parent Company 15 required to
make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements.

An impairment 10ss is recognized and charged to earnings if the discounted expected
future cash flows are less than the carrying amount. Fair value is estimated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using a discount factor that reflects the
miarket rate for a term consistent with the period of expected cash flaws.

Mo impairment loss on property and equipment were recognized in 2022 and 2021.
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of property and equipment
amounted to P256,748,852 and P272,.810,381, respectively, as disclosed in MNote 11,

Estimation of Impairment on Investment in a Subsidiary

The Parent Company determines at the end of each reporting period whether there
Is any objective evidence that the investment in a subsidiary is impair ed. If this is
the case, the Parent Company calculates the amount of impairment being the
difference between the fair value of the investment and the acquisition cost and
recognizes the amount in the Parent Company's profit or loss.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of investment in subsidiaries
amounted to P1,037,137.690, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 10.

Evaluation of Impairmeant of ather Nonfinancial Assats

Impairment review i performed on advances to employees presented under
“trade and other receivables®, prepayments and other current assets
(except guaranty deposit), deposits and investments, ROU assets, and computer
software when certain impairment indicators are present.

Determining the value of the assets requires estimation of future cash flows expected
to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets and
requires the Parent Company to make estimates and assumptions that can materially
affect the Parent Company's financlal statements. Future events could cause the
Parent Company to conclude that the assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment
loss could have a material adverse Impact on the Parent Company's financial
condition and results of cperations. Any increase in allowance for impairment would
increase the Parent Company’s operating expense and decrease the related asset,

Mo allowance for impalirment is provided as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 as
Management has not Identified any indicators of iImpairment.

Az of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of aforementioned assets
amounted to PE3ITEFEM04 and PS850,530,8%4, respectively, as disclosed in
Motes 7, 9, 12, 14 and 22,

Estimating of Retirement and Other Benefits

The determination of the Parent Company's obligation and cost for pension and other
retirement benefits s dependent on management’s selection of certain assumptions
used by actuaries In calculating such amounts. The assumptions for pension costs
and other retirement benefits are described In Note 21, and include among others,
discount and salary increase rates. In accordance with PFRS, actual results that
differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and
therefore, generally affect the Parent Company's recognized expense and recorded
obligation In such future periods. While Management believes that the assumptions
are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actual experience or
significant changes In Management assumptions may materially affect the Parent
Company's pension and other retirement obligations.
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The Parent Company also estimates other employee benefits obligation and expense,
including the cost of paid leaves based on historical leave availments of employees,
subject to the Parent Company's policy. These estimates may vary depending on the
future changes in salaries and actual experiences during the year,

Retirement benefits expense charged In the statements of comprehensive income
amounted to £2,688,397 and #2,403,177 for the years ended December 31, 2022
ard 2021, respectively, as disdosed in Notes 19 and 21, Retirement benefit liability
amounted te P15,571.842 and P13,000,884 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 21. Remeasurement gain and loss, net of related
tax, a5 of December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted to PB53,655 and R3,694,004,
respectively, as disclosed in Notes 21 and 23.

Key assumptions and additional information are shown in Mote 21.

Estimating of Deferred Tax Assels and Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible differences to the extent
that it Is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant management judgment
is required to determine the amount of deferred income tax asset that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together
with future tax planning strategies. Deferred tax liability is also reviewed at end of
financial reporting peried to determine if this will eventually result to actual Habkility.
Any changes in estimate would increase or decrease the amount recognized as
deferred tax assets or liabilities and amount recognized in profit or loss or other
comprehensive Income,

In 2021, no deferred tax asset was recognized in the Parent Company's financial
staterments as Management believes that these could not be utilized prior o its
explration. Howewver, Iin 2022, the Management assess that the Parent Company will
be able to generate sufficlent taxable profit to utilize the deferred tax assets due to
the recent developmeants to continuous business expansion, as disclosed in Mote 1.

Az of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of recognized deferred
tax assets amounted to B11,764,707 and nll, respectively, as disclosed in
Mote 23.

Estimating Conlingancies

The Parent Company has contingent liabilities which are either pending decision by
the courts or being contested, the cutcome of which is not presently determinable.
In the cpinion of management and its legal counsel, the eventual liability under these
claims, If any, will not have material or adverse effect on the financial statements.
The Information wsually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, Is mot disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to
prejudice the outcome or the Parent Company's position with respact to these
matters.,

Mo provision for contingent liabilities is recognized in 2022 and 2021,
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= Fair Value of Froperty and Equipment
The valuation has been carried out on January &, 2021, In accordance with the
Santos Knight Frank, Inc. incorporating the International Valuation Standards of the
International Valuation Standards Council (IVSC), and the Philippine Valuation
Standards (PVS). In valuing the land Market Approach was used which is the most
common technique for waluing land, and is the most preferred method when
comparable sales are avallable. With this method, sales of similar property or parcels
of land are analyzed, compared, and adjusted to provide a value indication for the
property being appraised. The comparison process is based on an analysis of the
similarity or dissimilarity of the comparable. Cost Approach was used for the
improvements while 8 combination of the Market and Cost Approach was used for
the machinery and equipment. The Cost Approach generally invalves the following
steps: (a) The value of the subject land is normally estimated by the Market Data or
Sales Comparison Approach. In instances where available market data is sufficient,
the Income Approach {Residual Method) can be used, (b) The depreciated cost of
the subject improvement is estimated by calculating the direct cost of reproducing
or replacing the improvement, deducting accrued depreciation from all sources, and
adding the indirect costs attributed to the improvement, Combining the estimates
shown above results in the indicated walue of the subject property by the Cost

Approach.
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of property and equipment

at revalued amount are P256,748,892 and P272,810,381, respectively, as disclosed
in Mote 11.

&. Cash

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Cash on hand P 135,000 P 30,132,418
Cash In banks 60,913,892 15,889,706

P 61,048,802 P 46,022,124

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates of less than 1% annually.
This includes check on hand undeposited as at year-end. Interest income earned from
cash in banks, net of final taxes withheld, amounted to P11,920 and P21,787 in 2022
and 2021, respectively.

The Parent Company has cash in banks denominated im foreign currency which are
translated at December 31, 2022 and 2021 closing rates. In 2022 and 2021,
unrealized forelgn exchange gain amounted to P102,943 and P3,590, respectively,
as disclosed in Note 26.
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7. Trade and Other Receivables - net

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Trade (Mote 17)
Third parties P 302,565,835 P 264,568,007
Related party (Note 20) 6,803,378 14,929 895
Advances to employees 35,774,212 36,441,299
Others 67,694,329 69,822,693
412,837,754 385,761,894

Less allowance for impalrment losses:
Trade (Note 17) 26,169,178 26,169,178
<] 386,668,576 P 359,592 716

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled through cash
collections or application of customer's deposit which are collectible on 15-day to 30-
day terms.

Advances to employees pertain to noninterest-bearing cash advances which are
subject to liguidation.

Dther receivables include noninterest-bearing receivables from sale of scraps and
rejected products by supermarkets, which are sold to the wet market at a lower
price and generally collectible on 15-day to 30-day terms. It also includes recelvable
from a third-party amounting to P&4,655,714 which is incduded In an ongoing
criminal action initiated by M2000 IMEX Company, Inc., a fully owned subsidiary of the
Parent Company, to recover the sald receivable among others. The amount Is
guaranteed by a stockholder in the event of an adverse result of the ongeoing case. In
the resclution dated January 29, 2021, the Office of the City of Prosecutor of Makati
finds and sufficient ground to engender a well-founded belief that the crime of Estafa
under Article 315,
paragraph 2 {a) was committed by respondent Emmanuel V. Duenas, The Parent
Company provided allowance for impairment amounting to £32,316,857 as of
December 31, 2020. In 2021, the Management decided to reverse the allowance for
impalrment since the amount is guaranteed by a stockholder.

The Parent Company has trade receivables denominated in forelgn currency which
are translated at December 31, 2022 and 2021 closing rates (see Note 26).

Movements in the allowance for impalrment losses of receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year P 26,169,178 P 95,036,930
Reversal of impairment = (68,867,752)
Balance at the end of year L 26,169,178 P 26,168,178

Mone of the Parent Company’s receivables were pledged to any of its liabilities.
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B.

Inventories

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Packaging materials and other supplies B 32,153,100 P 23,897,635
Beverages 8,626,610 22,458,893
Fruits and vegetables 4,160,922 5,298,812
Vegan products 565,626 682,392
P 45,506,258 P 52,337,732

The cost of inventories recognized as part of "Cost of Sales™ in profit or loss amounted to
£1,310,468,167 and P1,703,669,638, in 2022 and 2021, respectively. (see Note 18).

The carrying amounts of the total inventories as at December 31, 2022 and 2021
approximate their NRVs,

There were no purchase commitments, accrued net losses and provisions for impairment
losses on inventories in 2022 and 2021, Also, none of the Parent Company's invenkories
were used as collateral to any of its liabilities,

The Parent Company’s inventories are expected to be recovered within twelve (12)
months from the reporting dates.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

2022 2021
Prepaid expenses P 519,203 P 161,146
Input VAT - net 118,948,632 113,839,740
Guaranty deposit (Note 22) 6,775,643 6,731,000
_ Deposits to suppliers 3,161,815 1,409,985
P 129 253 p 122,141 871

Prepaid expenses include vehicles and equipment insurance, rental and IT services,

Input VAT arises from purchase of goods and services. Purchase of goods include
packaging and other supplies while purchase of services include but not limited to tolling
and professional fees and other contracted services,

Guaranty deposit pertains to refundable deposit made In conpection with the finance
lease with a leasing company which already ended as at December 31, 2020.
The guaranty deposit is yet to be refunded as of the reporting periods.

Deposits to suppliers are advance payment for future delivery of goods and services.



10. Investment in Subsidiaries - nat

The details of the costs of investment in subsidiaries are as follow:

2022 2021
BCH P 753,775,000 753,775,000
ZFT 338,820,706 338,820,706
TBC 264,210,000 264,210,000
ANI HE 254,039,701 254,035,701
FCAC 175,519,790 175,519,790
IMEX 89,050,000 89,050,000
F1 58,576,016 58,576,016
FFCI 5,210,000 5,510,000
Total 1,939,501,213 1,939,501,213
Less allowance for impairment 802,363,523 902,363,523
P 1,037,137,650 ¢  1,037,137,690

The Parent Company has varous investments In companies that are engaged in trading
of agricultural goods, export and other related Industries. Its direct investments and
their respective principal place and nature of business and percentages (%) of ownership
and control are as follows:

Principal place
of business Mature of business 2022 2021
BEH Phillppines  Farm management 100%  100%
AN HE Hongkong  Holding 100%  100%
FCAC Philippines  Trading of agricultural goods 100%  100%
Manufacturing and export of
IMEX Philippines agricultural goods 100%  100%
Manufacturing processingy trading
FI Phillppines frozen agricultural products 100%: 100%
Food and beverage retalling and
TBC Philippines franchising 80 % 80%
FFCI Philippines  Trading merchandise and farming S51% 1%
Agri commodities trading with
ZFT China investmant in real estate developmant 51%s 51%
Allowance for impairment lasses follow!
2022 2021
BCH L ol 53,775,000 753,775,000
ANI HE 148 588 523 148,588,523
Balances at end of year P 902,363,523 902,363,523

a7



(papiesmioy souejeg)]

THE _u.-i_m-_..ﬂ

@ FLTOSET @ COFFOS'ZZ o FELFLET d 085E60S o IBTSOCL68 o DODOODIST o

(FETSTT'ETT)

Ti0F oES) T PR TRHL BLL) TBE0 0L L) . ENPLNG UOpEneATE

BEE'LSORGT

BEL LTS POL

(EET‘DELOT)

PERSPIOEE

(EFT'ECE'E) (BRI 1T 9E) {B6E"9EE ‘6] (eve'oan's) (TOT'060'aE) - BoY
wapepasdap
PaE WSSy
PLSELRET LO5 LELFE DOTIEF T TIZ PGP EL TLESBEGIT 751 BALEA n.
EOC 65T FITR TN TOLO6ET BIGLBE T SEL OB T OLUFELBE BNpATE Lo |enay
TP EED'TT BGL'E99'8S SEE"ORT'OT EEE'959°01 LEE'RER'EL OERSLR' T e
TEOE *If J5quiasag
3 cow PETEEET 085 608 18150 68 000 1C0C "Ik
T T
TT0F 06G] (916 551 5] {08 05a) Bl BLE) T6Z0 001 E) = EnpInG UORenEeiag
(ooE'Ea) (8L+0ZLS) (z5a'0ea) 1 ] (BLTTBE'T) - =00
usiepasdan
- - - - - - Esdig
EOT"T65'T Lo LR ST ToL 08E'T BER' L8 SET 06" TH = & vogenesa
W N
PILEVE EbS'sl S0 DEOPET - - SUCTIpRY
206'SFE'T FOF'ESE' LT LET'BER'T LBPERTE 'S0 B 000" 000" ST TZ0Z ‘T Asenuer
g
TToT Bupnp

SjUatlianry

T ESELT FI T T T3
[To0"605 501 [EFe LT 6] (E02 60 05) [LES'5E+E) [GETFIL 2] Tide B69 EL) - ST TR FTY
PRI
SER'SSTECE L5L TR 01 ST ¥ia'Es PELEEG'E LES'T9¥' DT LTT PEEEL 00000 T5T aneA paspesddy
. - - - z DETFEL 6L RS uonenyeray
S9F TEN WO d £54'TEE0T d SIT'PES'89 o PEL'CES'S d LE9TIF0T  d LZZ'PAYEL o DER'SLE'TIT o £

TTOT T Asnuef

JUSRAGST]

!_.ﬂ:
PUR Bnd(uang
34D

SEMOJD) JUNOITE SIYY O SISAIBUE PURMIOH (IO BY L

12U - uswdinby pue Apsdold T




6E

uBwdinba pue AJBUlYIRW YY J0J PASN SEM YPROddY 1500 PUR J3MIE BYI JO LONEUIGICD B S)IYMm SJuawasoad) ayy
Jo) pasn sem yaecsddy 3503 "diqeledwico yj Jo AJUR|IWISSIP Jo AJelWIS By Jo sisAjeue ue uo paseq 5| ssa0osd uosuedwod ay) -pasiesdde
Bujeq Apadosd sy Joj uopedipu| anjes e apwold o pajsnipe pue ‘pasedwos ‘pazAjeue aue pue) jo sjpoued Jo Anadosd Jepuis jo sajes
'POWIAW SIYI WIIM "3|qe|eAR SuR SajEs a|qeiedod uayM poylaw paisajesd 50w By §) pue ‘puej Buinjes Joy anbluynal LOWLWOD JSOW Ay
5] YIIYm pasn sem yoeosddy Jandel pue) syl Buinjea ug (Sad) spiepuels uopenes suiddiyd ayy pue [ISAL) [IBUNSD SPJRPURLS USIEN|es
[BUCRELIBIUT S1] JO SpUBPUR]S UODEn|eA [BudiRwaiu] ay) Bupeiodioou) “Ju] "yueld Wbuy sojues AQ N0 PILUED USDG SEY UORENEA YL I35
Ag paipasaoe siasieldde jo wuy juspuadapu) AQ PAUILLIINRPR USaq SBY pur| SAuedwoD) Juaued U JO BNjRA JIB) BY] "TZOT ‘0 AJenuel pajep
vodas uoRERRA 3Y] UO PISE] JUNOWE PaN|EAR) JB PRUNSEIW asam Juawdinba pue Auadoud s Auedwon) Juased 3yl ‘1707 1€ Joquadag 18 sy

‘{91 alon a9s) sanpgen wuay-Buo| ayl Joy |eJaae)0D SB pasn aJue ‘djaaadsal
'TZOZ PUR ZZOZ '1E Jaquadag 1e 52 18T'S0Z'THId PUR ELR'ETL LETD J0 anjea Bujiues yym ueaeng ‘ueyng u) pageso| Buppng pue pue

]

BARLNS UOjIEn|eAsy
(EFT ETS £ET) (565'BE¥ L) (aoC'zILon) {zeg'spatzal {owE"E6L6) [5@w' 066" ) (T#+'10¢'82) - »
uspieiasdop
pagEjRunaTy
0% ESGEL SO0 FEEH FEEBZEEL SR TEUFR BLFEDG LT ISFSECFl TLEGBETIT o0 GO0 Fel wnjEa pesjeiddy
GOTSErES FETLIE EOL 1651 EFLLaP ST TRLO6LT BT SPiTO6TF DLTFITEL TS UGB e AT
IOV ETFS0E 0T£ 1008 TEH'RLLTT g5.LEe9'8s 229112701 ELE'LIN'TY LT wEr'EL oER'sSLE T b 2o
ETOT “IE sequisssg
§5L FELG5S ECLLE v DL SHO ¥ L'58 1 ZZOL 1L Jagi
‘aoumpeg
TOZT FO%°E]  (ZELLAD [TOFaEs) [GIa5al 5] (¥SZ OEP) THEL GLL) [EEC'al L] - SNjns Uoen|eAsy
iges TR 'OT) (LoE19) [65T%6LL) (999 ¥9'5) (T6'958) (zwa'606) (Bez'T6E'Z) - oo
.._._____unﬂ.ﬁﬂ.u_n-
ETSE0E'T [ieg 05105 - SEETL g T - - SucgpEry
TEEDIR'ELT d GEE'TSE d FEIO9ET d EO¥'¥IE'ZE o SEIFEZ'L d 02C'EE0°S d TRIUSOZ'EE o OODO0D'ZST o TEOT ‘T Adenoer
"TIUETEg
TEOE Bupnp
LA D
PEIEL FTTEITTELTAT: (] [ETETTT juswdinbs  juswdjnba  JUSdjnEE Buipng puey
FlOyiieEg PuE Bunywing puw oy bodEuR SEnOyBIEs
SO L TR pue Aaajaag pUR Ny

[panuguon]



The Cost Approach generally involves the following steps: (a) The value of the subject
land Is normally estimated by the Market Data or Sales Comparison Approach. In
instances where available market data is sufficient, the Income Approach (Residual
Method) can be used, (b) The depreciated cost of the subject improvement is estimated
by calculating the direct cost of reproduding or replacing the improvement, deducting
accrued depreciation from all sources, and adding the indirect costs attributed to the
improvement. Combining the estimates shown abowve results in the indicated value of the
subject property by the Cost Approach.

All additions to property and equipment in 2022 and 2021 were paid In cash.
The Parent Company's commitment to acquire property is discussed in Note 14,
Deprediation of property and equipment were charged to the following:

2022 2021
Cost of sales (Mote 18) P 13,404,969 P 14,052,350
General and administrative
expensaes {(Note 19) 4,462,139 4,682 156

P 17,867,108 P 18,734,506

If the property and equipment carried at revalued amounts were measured using cost
model, its cost and carrying amount would have been the following:

2022 2021
Land # 122,875830 P 122,875,830
Building 45,012,786 47,404,065
Store and warehouse equipment 2,447,088 2,575,450
Delivery and transportation equipment 418,338 BO3,940
Machinery and equipment 6,567,906 12,252,572
Office furniture and fixtures 1,026,323 1,299,322
Leasehold improvement 563,014 177,435

P 178,911,285 P 187 388,654

The Parent Company's management had reviewed the carrying values of property and
equipment as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 for any Impairment. Based on the
evaluation, thera are no indications that the property and equipment might be impaired.

12. Computer Software — net

The roliforward anaiysis of this account follows:

2022 2021

Cost:

Balance at beginning of year P 2,315,737 P 2,315,737

Additions during the year 23,036 =

Balance at end of year 2,338,773 2,315,737
Accumulated amortization

Balance at beginning of year 2,312,633 2,310,672

Amartization during the year 6,184 1,961

Balance at the end of year 2,318,B17 2,313,633
et carrying value P 19,856 P 3,104

Amortization of computer software is recognized under "General and administrative
expenses” account in profit or loss (see Note 19).

The Parent Company has no contractual commitment to purchase computer software.
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The computer software was not pledged as collateral to any of the Parent Company's

debt,

The remaining useful life of the computer software is 0.6 years and 1.6 years as of

December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The carrying value of computer software is reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

No impairment loss is recognized in 2022 and 2021,

13. Blological Assets

Consumable biological asset includes corns located In Bansalan, Davao del Sur with
carrying amount of P49,488,553 and P41,845,128 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, these are matured plants and are to be harvested as agricultural produce.,

The movements in the carrying amounts of the biological assets are shown below:

Year incurred 2022 2021

Balance, January R 41,845,128 P -
Increases due to purchases = 30,000,000
Gain arising from changes in fair value

less costs to sell 7,643,425 11,845,128
Balance, December 31 P 49,488,553 P 41,845,128

14. Deposits and Investments
This account consists of;
2022 2021

Deposit for land acquisition (Nobe 14.01) [ o] 508,700,000 508,700,000
Depaosit for business

acquisitions (Note 14.02) 107,444,301 106,781,020
Advances to producers (Mote 14.03) 4,068,101 4,068,101

" 620,212 402 619,549,121

Detalls of deposits and investments are as follows:

14.01 Deposit for Land Acquisition

On December 28, 2018, the Parent Company and a third-party individueal entered into an
agreement to form a joint venture to develop a property located in Taytay Rizal. Relative
to this, the Parent Company made a deposit amounting to P300,000,000 to acquire a
portion of the 859 hectares, or a corresponding portion thereof, of titled and untitied

parcels of land.

In 2019, the Parent Company made additional deposit amounting to P208,700,000 which
was advanced by one of its stockholders. The parties are in the process of executing the
projects under the Joint Venture Agreement. The joint venture shall include but not
limited to the formation of the following: Phase 1 - Transportation Hub, Phase 2 =
Food Terminal and Phase Property Development Corporation. As of reporting period,
the masterplan for the design of the food terminal were already completed.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit for land acquisition amounted to

P508,700,000.
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14.02 Deposit for Business Acquisitions

14.02.01 Freshness First Pty Lid.

On December 28, 2018, the Parent Company made a deposit amounting to AUD172,000
or P6,349,435 to acquire existing business operation in Australia,

In 2021, the Parent Company made additional deposit amounting to AUDSG3,B66 ar
P20,824,104.

This deposit was translated at December 31, 2022 and 2021 closing rates. Unrealized
foreign exchange gain amounted to P663,281 and PG69,849 in 2021 (see Note 26).

Az of reporting pericod, the investment to Freshness First Pty, Ltd. was still undergoing
finalization of legal documents.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit amounted to P27,817,501 and P27,154,220,
respectively.

14,02.02 Plentex Philippines, Inc.

On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the BOD and the shareholders of the
Parent Company, respectively, have approved the issuance of shares to Pléentex
Philippines, Inc. {Plentex). Plentex has subscribed for 6,172,800 shares and the Parent
Company has agreed to issue the same at a value of P18 per share which is to be paid
through the Issuance of 30,000,000 shares of Plentex Limited.,

Plentex is a Philippine Corporation that is dewveloping a substantial large scale
agri-business center in Tacloban, Leyte. Plentex is a subsidiary of Plentex Limited,
unlisted Australian public company in Victoria, Australia,

The subscription agreements have no definite timeling and are based on the mutual
agreement of both parties.

In 2021, the first batch of the issuance of shares pertaining to the subscription agreement
with Plentex Philippines, Inc. were made resulting te an increase in subscribed and paid-up
capital amounting to P2,057,600 and additional paid-in capital amounting P34,979,159, as
disclosed in Mote 24,

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit amounted to P7F3,376,800,

14.02.03 Agricuftural Bank of the Philippines, Inc.

On June 13, 2018, the Parent Company made a deposit amounting to PG,250,000 to a
local bank to acquire 2,500,000 common shares of another company representing 12.5%
ownershlp. The sald investment is still for approval of SEC and Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
[BSP). As of reporting period, the investment was already approved by the BSP, however
still pending approval from the SEC.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deposit amounted to P6,250,000.

14.03 Advances to Producers

In 2020, the Parent Company has agreements with various owners of manga farm lots
to provide farm inputs in the growing mangoes such as fertilizers and pesticides,

in exchange for share in the produce. Advances as of December 31, 2022 and 2021
amounted to 4,068,101,
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15.

Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of;

2022 2021

Trade payables P 66,362,697 P 37,784,585
Nontrade payables 8,125,514 8,847,063
Customers' deposit (Note 17) 12,692,067 22,152,014
Accrued expenses 8,696,164 2,235,780
Government payables 1,859,755 1,123,723
Refundable deposit (Mote 22} 121,511 121,511

P 97,857,708 P 72,265,076

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally settled within 30 days after
invoice date.

Non-trade payables arise from delivery, marketing and other expense of the Company.

Customers’ deposit pertains to advanced payments of customers for goods to be
purchased,

Accrued expenses include accrual of interest amounting to P3,167,840 and PB49,129, as
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 16, association dues,
security services, salaries and wages and professional fees.

Government payables include payables for expanded withholding taxes, withholding
taxes on compensation, final taxes, 555, PhilHealth and HDMF payables which are paid
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Refundable deposit is received from lessee of the Parent Company refundable upon end
of lease term.

All other payables are nonlinterast-bearing.

16.

Borrowings

Detalls of this account are as follow:

2022 2021
Long-term {Mote 16.01)
Bank 1 (Mote 16.01.01) A 29,053,571 B 104,267,857
Bank 2 (Note 16.01.02) = 6,214,574
29,053,571 110,482,431
Less: noncurrent portion - 28,053,571
Current portion 28,053,571 P E!.EB,H&D
Short-term (Note 16.02)
Bank 3 (Note 16.02.01) P 290,942,137 B 392, 200,000
Bank 4 (Note 16.02.02) 231,600,000 255,600,000
Bank 5 (Note 16.02.03) 110,000,000 197,000,000
Bank & (Note 16.02.04) 99,959,000 -
Bank 7 (Mote 16.02.05) 50,000,000 =

P 782,501,137 P 844,800,000
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The rollforward analysis of borrowings follows:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of the year B 955282431 P 774,929,683
Availments during the year 187,300,000 334,600,000
Payments during the year {331,027,723) (154,247,252)
Balance at end of year P B11,554,708 P 955,282,431

In 2022 and 2021, forelgn exchange adjustment pertains to realized foreign exchange
loss amounting to nil and P138,555 arising from the settlement of foreign currency loan,

16.01 Long-term Borrowings

160.01.01 Bank 1

The Parent Company has various loans, which pertain to its Short-term Loan Line [STLL),
Export Packing Credit Line (EPCL), Trust Receipt Lines (TR Lines) and other bank loans
that are currently maturing as of the end of the reporting period. The loans bear interest
rate of 6.91% peér annum, with the interest payable on a monthly basis,

The loans are secured by an existing real estate mortgage over its land and bullding
located in Pulilan, Bulacan. The aggregate amount of net book values of the land and
building mortgage amounted to P237,713,873, and P241,205,181 as at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 11).

16.01.02 Bank 2

The Parent Company has a current loan facility with loan bearing interest rate of B.0%
per annum;, with interest payable on a monthly basis. The loan has a term of 32 months,
and is payable via 24 monthly amortization of princdpal and interest, payable from
January 2016 to December 2017, inclusive of a grace pericd of 8 months on the payment
of the principal from May 2015 to December 2015. On June 30, 2017 the loan was
restructured and has a remaining term of 60 months, principal payable every month
starting October 2017. The loan is secured by pledge on shares of stocks of the Parent
Company and continuing suretyship with a stockholder. The loan was fully paid in 2021,

16.02 Short-term Borrowings

16.02.01 Bank 3

im both years, the Parent Company availed various short-term;, unsecured loans, bearing
an Interest rate of 8.50% per annum, with the interest payable on a monthly basis.
The loan is to be repriced every 30 to 180 days upon mutual agreement of bath parties,

16.02.02 Bank 4

In both years, the Parent Company availed unsecured, short-term loans with interest rate
of 7.75% per annum; payable in three {3} months.

16.02.03 Bank 5

In both years, the Parent Company avalled unsecured, short-term loans with interast rate
ranging from B.25% to B.50% per annum, payable in six (6) months.

16.02.04 Bank 6

In 2022, the Parent Company availed unsecured, short-term loans with interest rate of
6.50% per annum, payable in six (&) months.

16.02.05 Bank 7

In 2022, the Parent Company availed unsecured, short-term loans with interest rate of
6.80% per annum, payable in six (6) months.
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Finance cost incurred on the above borrowings is as follows:

2022 2021
Long-term borrowings P 51,493,767 P 13,050,437
Short-term borrowings 5816538 28.037,115

P 57,310,305 P 41,087 552

Mowvements of accrued interest as discosed in Mote 15 are as follows:

2022 2021
Accrued interest, beginning P B49,129 P 3,027,814
Interest incurned 57,310,305 41,087,552
Interest paid (54,991,594) (43,266,237)
Accrued interest, ending [ 3,167,840 B B49,129

The maturity profile for the Parent Company's borrowings as at December 31, 2022 and
2021 is as follows:

Maturity Profile 2022 2021
Due within one (1) year P 811,554,708 P 926,228,860
Due beyond one (1) year but not more

than five (5) years - 29,053,571

P 811,554,708 P 955,282 431

The borrower does not require any ratios and threshold to be maintained by the Parent
Company.

The Parent Company Is In compliance with terms and conditions of the borrowings in both
years.
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17. Revenua

The table shows the analysis of revenues of the Parent Company by major sources for
the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022
Category Export Local Total
Geographical
China P 1,136487,751 o = P 1,236,487,751
Phidlippines - 200,571,204 200,571,204
HongKong 23,560,421 - 23,560,421
usa 18,800,837 = 18,800,837
Macau 5,240,775 - 5,240,775
Jauan lgﬂ'ﬂﬂ'ﬂ“ = limia“
Middle aast 983,553 - 983,553
Canada 53,951 - 53,951
Hawail 4,560 - 4,560
Tokal 141,246 200,571,204 1 712,450
HMajor Goods/Services Ling
Banana 1,205,866,447 = 1,205,866,447
Fruits and vegetables B70,815 139,394,012 140,164,827
Frozen and pures 60,431,808 508,165 60,940,063
Rica - 50,080,000 50,080,000
Coco water 18,972,086 3,694,770 22,666,856
Sales commisskon - 5,340,836 6,340,836
Vegan - 293,719 293,719
Scrap - 10,837 10,837
Others - 248,865 248 B65
Total P 1,286,141,246 P 200,571,204 1,486,712,450




Z021

Category Export Local Total
Geographical

Chiina P 1477250 B05 A . B 1,477 259 B0S
Fhilippines: . 326,378,048 326,378,548
Hong Kong 5,430,718 - 5,430,718
Middle east 3021 474 ] 3,021,474
Others 64,921 969 - 64,921 965
Total 1,550,633 966 326,378,948 1,877,012,914
Major GoddsfServices Line

Banana 1,441,005,650 - 1,441,065,650
Rice - 200,000,000 200,000,000
Fruits and vegetables 2,558,710 116,366,579 118,925,289
Coco water 63,168,434 2,696,914 65,865,348
Others frozen/punee 42,064,470 - 42,064,410
Mango 1,746,702 152,960 1,899,682
Scrap . 158,482 158,482
Vegan - 87,504 87,504
Sales oomimitssion - 6,916,485 6,916,489
Total P 1550633966 P 326378948 B 1877012914

The Parent Company delivers the best quality produce by exporting and locally
distributing all kinds of fresh produce fruits and vegetables and other agri-products such
as banana, mango and coconut water, The performance obligation of the Parent Company
is satisfied at a point in time upon delivery and sale of the goods.

Contract Balances
2022 2021
Trade receivables (see Note 7)
Export B 261,624,667 P 210,031,406
Local 21,575,368 43,297 318
" HE,IEIHIID!E £ 253'323|?E4
Customers’ deposit (see Note 15)
Export [ 12,692,067 P 22,152,014
18. Cost of Sales
This account consists of:
2022 2021
Inventories at beginning of year P 52,337,732 P 30,148,249
Purchases and conversion of costs 1,303,636,693 1,725,861,121
Cost of goods available for sale 1,355,074,425 1,756,007,370
Less inventories at end of year (Mote 8) 45,506,258 52,337,732

P 1,310468,167 P 1,703,660638
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Purchases and conversion costs consist of:

2022 2021
Agricultural produce and beverages # 1,195643,201 P 1,578,966,891
Freight and handling costs 53,497,461 47,676,679
Depreciation and amaortization
(Motes 11 and 22) 33,289,154 33,936,535
Retailer's margin 11,594,982 10,020,207
Packaging supplies 7,781,058 43,195,426
Tolling fees (Note 20) 1,772,717 12,065,383
Direct labor 58,120 ~
P 1,303,636,693 & 1,725861,121
19. General and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of;
2022 2021
Personnel costs B 49,104,532 P 46,747,673
Taxes and licenses 17,907,191 17,894,403
Representation and entertainment 8,028,603 8,683,368
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 11 and 12) 4,468,323 4,684,117
Repairs and maintenance 4,090,764 1,389,625
Freight and handling costs 3,914,733 3,725,407
Advertising 3,197,042 2,976,560
Professional fees 3,011,414 5,431,007
Communication, light and water 2,973,998 3,595,165
Retirement benefits (Note 21) 2,688,397 2,403,177
Penalties and charges 2,606,931 648,925
Contracted services 2,105,812 1,715,739
Transportation and travel 1,978,810 1,359,471
Rentals (Mote 22) 1,285,480 1,156,157
Office and farm supplies 1,032,146 929,798
Production supplies 429,879 25,427
Dues and subscription 350,401 Q87,106
Bank charges 124,048 311,755
Insurance 67,734 159,476
Others 3,340,209 4,628,139
P 112,706,447 P 109,452,495

Others pertains to tralnings and seminars, pest controls, malls and postages, printing,

and miscellaneous expense,
Personnel cost are as follows:

2022 2021
Salaries and wages B 45,703,411 o] 43,782,873
Other employee benefits 3,401,121 2,964,800
L 49,104,532 P 46,747,673

Other employee benefits include SSS, HDMF, Philhealth employer contributions and 13™
month bonus.



20. Related Party Transactions

The Parent Company has the following transactions with related parties:

Unsecured and noninterest-bearing cash adwances to/from its related parties for
investing activities and working capital purposes. These are collectible/payable on
demand and usually settled in cash or other forms of assets.

b. The Parent Company sells fruits and vegetables and purchases puree to its related
parties. Also, a subsidiary provides tolling fees to the Parent Company.
¢. A stockholder personally guaranteed several bank loans with its real estate property,
shares of stock and continuing suretyship of a stock (see Note 16).
d. Details of related party balances follow:
2022 2021
Due from
Subsidiaries [Mote 20.01) # O68,758,996 P D64, 227,986
Stockholders (Note 20.02) 116,423,993 149,573,357
Affillates/Entity under common
ownership (Note 20.02) H!Iilﬂlﬁiﬁ 207,788,439
P 1,321,093,655 P 1321589782
Due to

Subsidiaries (Nobe 20.01)

P 19,880,395 P -
12,842,516

Stockholders (Note 20.02) 58,538,186
Affiliates/Entity under commaon
ewnership (Note 20.03) 12,505,495 5,333,927
P 90,924,076 P 18,176,443
The roliforward analysis of related party accounts follow:
2022 2021

Due from related parties:
Balance at beginning of year

P 1,326,907,591 P 1,325,193,884

Advances made 85,431,677 240,568,884
Collections/liquidation (85,827,804) (238,B55,177)
Balance at end of year 1,326,411,464 1,326,907,591
Allowance for impairmeant (5,317 809) {5,317.809)

Met i;arrrlni value

P 1,321,093,655 P 1,321589,782

Due to related parties:
Balance at beginning of year
Advances received
Payments made

Balance at end of year

P 18,176,443 P 13,173,209
73,012,778 5,714,043
[(265,145) (710, 809)
P 90,924076 P 18,176,443




20.01 Subsidiaries

Details of transactions with subsidiaries are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Amountsf Outstanding Armourts Outstanding
Volume Balances Viodume Balances
Subsidiarias
Receivable P 068,758,596 P 964,227,986
Advances made P 37,041,426 B 59,834,424
Collections (32,510,416) (15,711,861}
Revenue 8,921,587 6,803, 378" 3,624,825 14,929 895"
Payable (19,880,395)
Advances recelved (19,880,395} -
Cosl of sales =
Telling fees (1,772,717) {12,065 383)

®[aclided i trade and receivabies [2ee Nole 7)
The following are the nature, terms and conditions:;

# Receivable - pertain to advances used to finance the dally working capital requirament of
the subsidiaries. These are non-interest bearing, unsecured, collectible on demand and will
be settled in cash. No guarantees have been received, Allowance for impairment losses in
respect to the amount owed by subsidiaries amounted to PS,317,809, as of December 31,
2022 and 2021,

* Revenus - pertain to sale of goods to subsidiaries. These are non-interest bearing,
unsecured, collectible within 15 to 30 days and will be settled in cash, No guarantees have
been received. Mo provisions have been made for expected credit losses in respect of the
amounts owed by subsidiaries.

+ Payable - pertain to advances used to finance the working capital requirements of the
Company. These are nan-interéest bearing, unsecured, payable on demand and will be
settled in cash. Mo guarantees have been given in respect of the amount owed to
subsidiaries.

& Cost of sales - pertain to tolling fees from canning services rendered by M2000 Imex
Company, Inc. These are non-interest bearing, unsecured, collectible within 30 days and
will be settied in cash, No guarantees have been given in respect of the amount owed to
subsidiaries.

20.02 Stockholders
Details of transacticns with stockholders are as follows:

Decembar 31, 2023 December 31, 2021
Amounts, Outstanding Amountsf Qutstanding
Volume Balances Volume _Balances
Stockholders

Recehvabie P 116,423,993 P 149,573,357
Advances made P 19,630,094 P 81,230,255
Collections (52,779,458) {200,347,993)

Pavabis ({58,538,186) (12,842,516)
Advances received {45,761,220) (5,714,043)
Payments 65,550 -

a0




The following are the nature, terms and conditions:

» Receivable = pertain to advances to the Parent Company's President to be used in the
Agri-Sector Digitalization Program in partnership with government agencies
(see Mote 1). These are non-interest bearing, unsecured, collectible on demand and will
be settled in cash. No guarantees have been received. No provisions have been made for
expected credit losses in respect of the amounts owed by the stockholders.

#* Payable = pertain to advances used to finance the working capital requirements of the
Company, These are non-interest bearing, unsecured, payable on demand and will be
settled in cash. No guarantees have been given in respect of the amount owed to
stockholders.

20.03 Affiliates/Entity under common ownership

Details of transactions with affiliates/entity under common ownership are as follows:

December 31, 3022 December 31, 2021
Amounts/ Cutstanding Amounks Outstanding
Volume Balances Volume Balances
Affiliates
Becelvabie P 235,910,666 207,788,439
Advances made B 28,760,157 2] 100,504,205
Colbections (637,930) (£3,795,303)
Pavabis {12,505,495) (5,333,927)
Advances received (7,371,163) -
Paymenls 198,585 710,808

The following are the nature, terms and conditions:

* Receivable - pertain to advances used to finance the daily working capital requirement of the
affillates. These are non-interest bearing, unsecured, collectible on demand and will be settled
in cash. No guarantees have been received. No provisions have been made for expected credit
losses in respect of the amounts owed by the affiliates.

* Payable - pertain to advances used to finance the working capital requirements of the Company.
These are non-interest bearing, unsecured, payable on demand and will be settled in cash. Mo
guarantees have been given in respect of the amount owed to affiliates.

20.04 Remuneration of Key Management Personmnel

The Farent Company considers its President, Chief Finance Officer, Assistant Vice President
as key management personnel. Total remuneration of key management personmel,
composed mainly of short-term employee benefits and provision for retirement benefits
for executive afficers, were included under "Personnel Costs" and *Retirement Benefits” in
the general and administrative expenses in profit or loss.

Details on the remuneration of key management personnel, as disclosed in Mote 1, are as
follows:

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits # 10,370,052 £ 11,864,508
Post-employment benefits S67,744 609,924

P 10,937,796 P 12,474,432

51



21. Retirement Benefit Liability

The Farent Company has unfunded, noncontributery defined benefit pension plans covering
substantially all of its qualified employees. The following table summarizes the components
of retirement liabllity recognized in profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

2022 2021

Charged to profit or loss

Current service cost P 1,749,733 B 2,129.790

Net inberest cost 938 664 273,387
2,688,397 2,403,177

Recocgnized in other comprehensive incomea

Net actuarial loss - defined benefit obligation (117,439) 3,694,005
p 2570958 P 5,097,182

Reconciliation of retirament benefit liability recognized in the Parent Company statements
of financial position are as follows:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year P 13,000,884 P 6,903,702
Retirement benefit expense (Note 19) 2,688,397 2,403,177
Remeasungment 055 [(117,439) 3,684,005
Balance at end of year P 15,571,842 P 13,000,884
The reconciliation of other comprehensive gain - net as at December 31, 2022 and 2021
follows:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year P 3,062,302 P (631,703}
Remeasurement loss during the year (117,439) 3,694,005
Tax effect (736,216) -
_Balance at end of year L 2,208,647 P 3,062,302

There are no unusual or significant risks to which the retirement plan exposes the Parent
Company. Howewver, in the avent a benefit claim arises, it shall be immeaediately due and
payable from the Parent Company.

There was no plan amendment, curtailment, or settlement recognized as at December 31,
2022 and 2021,

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-empleyment medical benefits as
well as the present walue of the pension cbligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. The actuartal valuation invelves making various assumptions.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and post-employment benefit
obligations for the defined benefit plans is as follows:

2022 2021
Discount rate 7.22% 5.20%
Projected salary Increase rate 5.20% 5.00%

The Parent Company’s latest actuarial valuation report is as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2021.



The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the defined benesfit
liability is as follows:

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Changes in Decrease in
AEEL n_ Incresse n assumption FEEUM
Dacambar 31, 2022
Discount rate 4+/-1.00%  Decrease by 3.94% Increase by 5.52%
P salary Incresss rate +/-1.00% Increage by 12.05% Decrease by 10.85%
December 31, 2021
Discownt rate +7-1.00% Decreasa by §.20% Increase by 4.20%
Profected salary Increase rate 4 f=1.00% Increase by 6.00% Decrease by 4.00%

All other assumptions are held constant in determining the sensitivity results above.

Asset-Liability Matching (ALM) strategies to manage risks since the Parent Company does
not have a retirement fund, the ALM study is not applicable.

The estimated average remaining working lives of employees is 14 years for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Lease Agreements

Parent Company as Lessor
The Parent Company has an operating lease arrangement of its property to Huayou
Construction Development Philippines Corporation,

The lease has a term of one {1} year commendcing from January 1, 2018 subject to an annual
review and renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties, The lease contract was renewed
in 2022 and 2021 for another twelve (12) months from date of renewal. Refundable deposit
pertaining to this lease amounted to P121,511 (see Nobte 15).

Rental income recognized from this lease amounted to P1,228,069 and P1,155,469 in 2022
and 2021, respectively.

The lease agreement indudes clause requiring the lessee to be liable when the property has
been subjected to excess wear-and-tear during the lease term. This strategy minimizes the
risk exposure to residual value of the underlying asset,

Parent Company as Lessee
The Company leases machinery and transportation eguipment from third parties under finance
lease agreements ranging from four (4) to seven (7) years.

I. Right-of-use asset
The balance and movements of ROU assets relating to the lease of machinery and
transportation equipment is as follows:

2022 2021

Cost:

Balance at beginning and end of r L 138,779.014 P 138,775,014
Accumulabed depreciation:

Balance at beginning of year 59,652,555 39,768,370

Depreciation during the year (Note 18) 19,884,185 19,884,185

Balance at énd of yesr 79,536,740 58,652, 555

Met carrying value p 59,242,274 P 79,126,459

iI. Refundable Deposit
Relative to the lease, the Company made a guaranty deposit amounting to PG6, 731,000 as
at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The refundable deposit is presented under
"Prepayments and other current assets” in the Parent Company statements of financlal
position as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 (see Note 9).
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IIl. Short-term Leases

The Parent Company leases office spaces and warchouses under lease agreements usually
for a period of one (1) year, renewable subject to the mutual consent of the lessor and
the lessee without any escalation dause. In 2022 and 2021, rental expense amounted to
P1,285,480 and P1,156,157, respectively, as disclosed in Note 19, Security deposit related
to short-term leases amounted to P44,643 and nil, respectively, as disclosed in Nobe 9,

23.

Income Taxes

23.01 Income Tax Recognized in Profit or Loss

Components of income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2022 and

2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Current tax expense P 4,420,687 P B, 328,692
Defearred tax benefit (7,217,116) (524,355)
P (2,796,429) P 7,804,337

Current tax expense consists of the following:

2022 2021

Current tax expense during the year P 4.420,6BF P 9,448,224
Impact of change in tax rate on

current tax expense = (1,119.532)
L 4,420,687 P 8,328,692

The reconciliation of Income tax expense (benefit) applicable to income before income tax
computed at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense as shown in the profit or

loss follows:
2022 2021
Income before income tax /22480409 P 104,608,365
Statutory tax rate 25094 25%
Income tax at statutory rate 5,620,102 26,174,591
::El:;is:'le tax effects of permanent reconciling

Non-deductible depreciation from piecemeal
realization of revaluation surplus 1,896,030 2,003,593
Nondeductible expenses BO1,238 163,593
Effect of change in tax rate due to CREATE = (1,119,532)
MCIT applied - (3,485,638)
Changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets - (15,926,825)
Interest income subjected to final tax (2,980) (5,445)
Recognition of deferred tax assets (11,110,819) £
P (2,796,429) @ 7,804,337
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24.Issued Capital

The issued capital of the Parent Company are as follows:

2022 2021
Capital stock P B72,831,688 P 832,831,688
Additional paid-in capital 3,602,050,960 3,602,050,560

P 4,474,882,648 P 4,434,882 648

Components of capital stock are as follows:

2022 2021
Preference shares (Note 24.01) B 40,000,000 P -
Ordinary shares (Note 24.02) B32,831,688 832 831,688
P 872,831,688 P 832 831,688

The movement in the Parent Company's subscribed and pald-up capital is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning (] 832,831,688 P 830,774,088
Paid-up during the year 40,000,000 2,057,600
Balance at and of year p B72,831.68B P 832 B31.688

Rollforward analysis of subscribed capital at par value is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year £ 1,024,446,888 P 1,024,446,888
Subscription during the year 40,000,000 =
Balance at end of year P 1064446,888 B 1,024 446 6888

The movement in the Parent Company's additional paid-in capital is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year P 3,602,050,960 @& 3,567,071,761
Additions during the year
(net of subscriptions receivable OF
P307,481,882 in
2023 and 2021, respectively)® = 34,979,199
Balance at end of year P 3,602,050,960 F 3,602,050,960

*The subscription recelvalble m'ﬁ b credited (o adaitional pald-in capital vpon colfection.
24.01 Preference Shares

The movements in the carrying amount of the Parent Company’s preference shares are shown

balow.
2022 2021
Shares Amount Shares Armount
Authorized
PO.10 par value 400,000,000 # 40,000,000 - p -

Issued and fully paid
Balance, January 1 = .
Pald-up during the year 400,000,000 40,000,000 - =

Balance, December 31 400,000,000 P 40,000,000 - =
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Al the annual meeting of the stockholders, held at its principal offices on September 9, 2022,
at which meeting a guorum was present and acted throughout, the stockholders representing
at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock approved the reclassification of the
Corporation’s 40,000,000 unissued common shares with par value of One Peso (P1.00) per
share, or an aggregate par value of P40,000,000, Into 400,000,000 voting preferred shares
with par value of Ten Centavos (R0.10) per share, or an aggregate par value of R40,000,000,
with thie following features:

The preferred shares shall have the following rights, privileges, limitations, and restrictions,
which shall also appear an the Certificates of the Preferred Shares of the Corporation:

i. The right to vote and be woted for;

ii. The right to receive, cut of unrestricted retained earnings of the Corporation,
participating dividends at the rate as may be deemed proper by the Board of
Directors under the prevailing market conditions or such other relevant factors as
the Board of Directors may consider, Said dividend maybe declared and payable at
the discretions of the Board of Directors after taking into account the Corporation’s
earning, cash flows, financial conditions and other factors as the Board of Directors
may consider relevant; and

ili. Im the liquidation, dissolution and winding up the Corporation, whether voluntary or
otherwise, the right to be paid in full or ratably, insofar as the assets of the
Corporation will permit, the par value or face value of each preferred share as the
Board of Directors may determine upon their issuance, plus unpaid and accrued
dividends up to the current dividend period, before any assets of the Corporation
shall be paid or distribubted to the holders of the common shares.

The reclassification of shares was filed, and approved by the S5EC on November 16, 2022,
24.02 Ordinary Shares

The movement in the Parent Company's authorized number of shares is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning P 2,000,000,000 P 2,000,000,000
Reclassification to preferred shares _{400,000,000) =
Balance at end of year 1,600,000,000 P 2,000,000,000
The movement in the Parent Company's subscribed and pald-up capital is shown below:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning n B32,B31,6BB P B30,774,088
Pald-up during the year - 2,057,600
Balance at end of year P 832,831,688 P B32 831 GEB

Rollforward analysis of subscribed capital at par value is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning and end of year P~ 1,024,446,888 P 1,024,446,888
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The movement in the Parent Company's additional paid-in capital Is shown below:

2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year B 3,602,050,960 @ 3,567,071,761
Additions during the year
{net of subscriptions receivable of
P307,481 BB82 in 2022 and 2021)* - 34,979,199
_Balance at end of year B 3,602,050,960 @& 3,602, 050,960

*The subscription recelvable will be credited to additional pald-in capital upon coliaction.

In 2020, Plentex Philippines, Inc. and the Parent Company entered into a subscription
agreement in which the former agreed to subscribe for and the latter has agreed to issue a
total of 6,172 B00 common shares of the Parent Company's authorized capital stock.
The parties have agreed that Plentex will subscribe for the shares in three (3) separate
batches each of 2,057,600 common shares at a price of P18 per share. The subscription
agreements have no definite timeline and are based on the mutual agreement of both parties.

In 2021, the first batch of the issuance of shares pertaining to the subscription agreement
with Plentex Philippines, Inc, were made resulting to an increase in subscribed and pald-up
capital amounting to P2,057,.600 and additional paid-in capital amounting P34,979,199,
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Methods and Assumptions Used to Estimate Fair Value

The carrying values of cash, trade and other receivables, due from related parties and
stockholders, guaranty deposit, trade and other payables, due to related parties and
borrowings approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of the transactions.

The falr wvalue of financial assets and labilities incuded In Level 2 which are not traded in an
active market are determined based on inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
{i.e., derived from prices):

25.02 Fair Value Determinations of Asset

The following provides an analysis of assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis subsequent to initial recognition at falr value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which inputs to valuation technigues are observable:

= Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or llabilities;

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Lewel 1 that are observable for the asset or lability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices); and

¢ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from wvaluation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

£=.02.01 Fair Value Higrarchy
Shown below are the fair value of assets:

Recurring Falr Value Measurements

Level 3 2022 2021
Assets:
Biological assats P 49,488,553 P 41,845,128
Property and equipment 256,748,892 272,810,381

P 306,237,445 P 314,655,509

aggaks:

Property and equipment: In valuing the land Market Approach was used which is the
most common technique for waluing land, and Is the most preferred method when
comparable sales are available. With this method, sales of similar property or parcels of
land are analyzed, compared, and adjusted to provide a value indication for the property
being appraised. The comparison process |s based on an analysis of the similarity or
dissimilarity of the comparable. Cost Approach was used for the improvements while a
combination of the Market and Cost Approach was used for the machinery and
equipment. The Cost Approach generally involves the following steps: (a) The value of
the subject land is normally estimated by the Market Data or Sales Comparison
Approach. In instances where available market data is sufficient, the Income Approach
{Residual Method) can be used, (b) The depreciated cost of the subject improvement Is
estimated by calculating the direct cost of reproducing or replacing the improvement,
deducting accrued depreciation from all sources, and adding the indirect costs attributed
to the improvement. Combining the estimates shown above results in the indicated value
of the subject property by the Cost Approach,

Gl



Biological assets: The fair value was derived using the market approach, Market approach
is a valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market
transactions Involving identical or comparable assets. Under market approach, the maost

significant input into this valuation is the fair value less estimated costs to sell in an active
market.

Im both year, there were no transfers to and from Lesvel 2 fair value measurements.
The Parent Company has no financial instruments that are carried at FVTPL.

26

. Financial Risk Managemant Objectives and Policies

"I'he Parent Cnmpany ha& rl.ﬁk manaqem&nt Pﬂliﬂﬂ- that systematically view the risks that
could prevent the Parent Company’s from achieving its objectives. These policies are intended
to manage risks identified in such a way that opportunities to deliver the Parent Company’s
cbjectives are achieved.

The Parent Company's risk management takes place in the context of day-to-day operations
and normal business processes such as strategic planning and business planming.
Management has identified each risk and Is responsible for coordinating and continuously
impraving risk strategies, processes and measures in accordance with the Parent Company's
established business objectives.

The Parent Company's principal financial instruments consist of cash, trade and other
receivables and payables, net of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, guaranty
depaosit, bormowings, lease liability, and due to and from related parties. The maln purpose of
these financial investments is to finance the Parent Company’s operations. The Parent
Company has wvarious other financial assets and financial liabilities such as receivables,
and accounts payable and ather liabilities which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Parent Company's financial instruments are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk.

The BOD reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized belaw:

s Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the potential loss arising from any fallure by counterparties to fulfill
their obligations, as and when they fall due, It is inherent to the business as potential
Iosses may arise due to the fallure of its customers and counterparties to fulfill their
obligations on maturity perieds or due to adverse mark et conditions.

4. Credit Risk Exposine
Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of the financial assets is the carrying
amounts of the Parent Company's financial assets as summarized below:

Motes 2022 2021
Cash in bank & B 60,913,892 P 15,889,706
Trade and other recelvables = net® 7 350,894,364 323,151,417
Due from related parties - net 20 1,204,669,662 1,172,016,425
Due from stockholders 20 116,423,993 149,573,357
Guaranty deposit 9 6,775,643 6,731,000

P 1,739,677,554 P 1667,361,905
*Exciuding advances fo amployees sulifect to lguidation.

6
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Standard grade accounts are active accounts with propensity of deteriorating to
mid- range age buckets, These accounts are typically not impaired as the
counterparties generally respond to credit actions and update their payments
accordingly, Trade and other receivables were assessed as standard grade in which
receivables are collected after their dus dates provided that the Parent Company
made a persistent effort to collect them. Due from related parties and stockholders
are due and demandable which are classified as standard grade since the related
party is capable of repaying the amount due.

Balow is the aging analysis of past due but not impaired receivable:

30 to 60 61 to 90 More than 90
Trade  days days days Total

2022 P 28,729,075 P 68,248,012 P 65,519,311 P 162,496,398
2021 P 32491,172 B 29458416 P 117,244,137 P 179,153,725

Risk Concentration of the Maximum Exposire to Credit Risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar
business activities or activities in the same geographic region or hawve similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Parent Company's performance
to developments affecting a particular industry or gecgraphical location, Such credit
risk concentrations, if not properly managed, may cause significant losses that could
threaten the Parent Company’s financial strength and underming public confidence,

The Parent Company is not exposed to large concentration of credit risks.,

Impairment Assessment

The Parent Company applies general approach for determining ECL of cash in banks,
nontrade receivables, due from related parties and stockholders, and guaranty
deposit. A credit loss is the difference between the cash flows that are expected to
be received discounted at the original effective Interest rate and contractual cash
flaws in accordance with the contract. The loss allowance for financlal assets is based
on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The management
does not provide allowance for Impairment on nontrade receivables as at December
31, 2022 and 2021, Allowance for Impairment on due from related parties amounted
to P5,317,808 as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 (see Note 20).

The Parent Company applies the PFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To measure expected
credit loss, receivables were grouped based on days past due and grouped the
customers according to their profile. The expected loss rates are based on the
historical credit losses within the period of time. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

The Parent Company has identified GDP of Asia Pacific continent to which the principal
entities of the Parent Company’s customers for its export sales are based as the most
relevant factor, and accordingly adjust historical loss rate based on the changes on
GDP growth rates. The Parent Company has Identified GDP of the Philippines as the
maost relevant factor for its local and related party sales.

Aside from the provision for ECL using the simplified approach, the management
provided allowance for impairment losses for trade receivable that management has
specifically assessed to be uncollectible. Allowance for impairment losses on trade
recelvables specifically identified by management amounted to P26,169,178 as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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Based on the above basis, the loss allowance on the remaining receivables using the
expected loss rates after specific identification as at December 31, 2022 and 2021
was determined as follows:

2022

1 to 30 Over 30 to
dli'!f!l plll: 60 dlw past Over 60 to 90 Owver 90 days
due days past due  past due

Expected loss rate
Export 0.00% 0. 00%s 0.00% 0.00%
Local 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Related party 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%0 0.00%s

2021

1 to 30 days Ower 30 to 60 Ower 60 B0 90 Onver 50 days
past due  days past due days past due  past due

Expected loss rate

Export i0.00%: 0.00% i0.00% i0.00%
Local 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Related party 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Total allowance for impairment lesses on trade recelvables from the simplified
approach of measuring ECL amounted to P26,169,178 as at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively,

Total provision for impalrment losses recognized under General and administrative
account in profit or loss amounted to nil in 2022 and 2021, respectively (see Note 7).

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Parent Company may encounter

difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments from financial instruments.
The Parent Company manages its liquidity based on business needs, tax, capital or
regulatory considerations, if applicable, through numerous sources of finance in order to
maintain flexibility. Its objective is to maintain sufficient funding to finance its operations
through aggressive receivable collection. The Parent Company considers its available
funds and its liguidity in managing its long-term financial requirements.
For its short-term funding, the Parent Company’s policy Is to set guldelines on portfolio
limit structures amd to ensure that there are sufficlent capital inflows to match
repayments of short-term debts.
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The balances have been restated at the following closing rates:

2022 2021
ush P56.12 RLS0.774
AUD 37.80 36.81
CHNY 8.04 7.97

Details of net forelgn exchange loss recognized in profit or loss follows:

Note 2022 2021
Unrealized foreign exchange
gain {loss)
Trade receivables 7 p 6,835,855 P (3,091,144)
Deposit for business acquisition 14 663,281 69,849
Cash In banks & 102,943 3,590
Realized foreign exchange
gain (loss) (2,558,271) (428.837)

P 5,043,808 P (3,446,542)

The Parent Company closely monitors the movements in the exchange rate and makes a
regular assessment of future forelgn exchange movements. The Parent Company then
manages the balance of its foreign currency denominated assets and liabllities based on
this assessment.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the
Philippine peso - foreign exchange rate, with all variables held constant, to the Company's
income before tax (due to changes in fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) on
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

2022 2021

Percentage

Percentage increass
Reasonably possible changes Incraass/ Effect on decrease in Effect on
in Philippine Pesa — Forahgn dacroasa In incoma befora foreign  income befores
axchange Rates foraign currency tax CUTTency tax
ush +1.66% 255.827,797 +0.99%: 122,081,971
ALID +2.13% 212,439,000 +2.60/% 25,940,055
CHY +1.30% 33,832 +1.30%: 4,787
ush =1.66% (255,827, 797) =099 (122,081,971)
AUD =2.13% (22,435,000) -2.60%  (25940,055)
CHY =1.30% {33,821) =1.30F% (4,787}

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Parent Company's capital management is to ensure that the

Parent Company has sufficient funds in order to support their business, pay existing obligations
and maximize sharcholder value.

The Parent Company's policy is to maintain sufficlent capital to cover working capital
requirements. The Parent Company obtains advances from related parties to cover inadequacy
In working capital.
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The Parent Company considers the following accounts as capital:

2022 2021
Capital stock L 872,831,688 P  §32.831,688
Additional paid-in capital 3,602,050,960 3,602,050,960
Due to related parties 90,924 076 18 176,443

P 4,565,806,724 P 4453 059,091
The Parent Company's debt-to-equity ratio follows:

5 2022 2021
Total liabilities P 1,030,704,813 P 1,084,315,002
Total equity 2,935 867,629 2,867 841,106
0.35:1 0.38:1

The Parent Company does not have externally imposed capital requirements.

27.Reclassification of Comparative Amounts

Certain amounts in the comparative financial statements and nobte disclosures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. The reclassifications of
comparative amounts are as follows:

The foregoing reclassifications have an impact on the opening statement of financial position
as of January 1, 2022 but did not have any impact on prior year’s profit or loss and stabement

of cash flows.
Amount as of
December 31,
Current Classification Previous Classification 2021
Statement of financial position
Due from related parties - net Due from stockholders
Due from stockholders Due from stockholders P 149,573,357
Statement of comprehensive
income
Finance costs Other income (charges)
Finance costs Finance costs 57,310,305

Management believes that the above reclassifications resulted to a better presentation of
BECOUNts.

28. Events after Reporting Period
28.01 Equity Restructuring

On March 27, 2023, the Parent Company’'s application for equity restructuring to
wipe-out the deficit as of December 31, 2021 in the amount of P1,628,045,535
against the additional paid-in capital (APIC) of P3,602,050,960 was approved
considering that all the reguirements have been complied with provided that the
remaining APIC of P1,974,005,425 cannot be applied for future losses that may be
incurred by the Parent Company without prior approval of the SEC.
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29. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

The following information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable

year 2022 is presented for purposes of compliance with the disclosure requirements by the
BIR as provided for in its RR 15-2010 and is not a required part of the basic finandal

statements In accordance with PFRS:

a. Service Revenue/Receipts and output VAT declared in the Parent Company's VAT retums

b.

follows:
Service
revenue receEpts Cutput VAT
Vatable sales 10,902,676 P 1,308,321
Zero-rated sales 1,029,942, 208 -
Exempt sales 182,221,602 .
Input VAT
Balance at beginning of the year 114,453, B85
Current yvear's domestic purchases/payments for:
Purchase of domestic sendioes 3,426,367
Others 1,178,591
Total available input VAT 119,058 843
Less: Application against output VAT and other
adjustments {1,922 466)
Balance, Dacambar 31 11]"1353??
Withholding Taxes
Final income taxes withheld P 6,463,623
Expanded withholding taxes 1,300,185
Withhalding taxes on compensation and benefits 1,103,964
B 8,867,772
Taxes and licenses
License and permits fees 2] 15,249,359
Documentary stamp tax 2,292,B15
Excise tax 339,132
Motarial fee 25,895
[ 17,907,191

Documentary stamp tax pertains to payments for insurance policies, issuance of
additional shares of stock, and new promissory notes for loans.
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30.Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 19-2011
Pursuant to Section 244 in relation to Section &6{H) of the National Internal Revenue Code of
19597 (Tax Code), as amended, these regulations are prescribed to revise BIR Form 1702
setting forth the following schedules. Below are the disclosures required by the said
regulation:

a. Revenue

The Parent Company’s revenue from sale of goods for the taxable year amounted to
P1,486,712,450.

b. Cost of Sales

The fallowing is the analysis of the Parent Company's cost of sales for the taxable year:

Inventories at beginning of year P 52,337,732
Purchases and conversion of costs 1,297, 948,603
Cost of goods available for sale 1,350,286,335
Less Inventories at end of year 45,506,258

A 1,304, 780,077

Purchases and conversion costs consist of:

Agricultural produce and beverages P 1,195,643,201
Freight and handling costs 53,497 461
Depreciation and amortization 27,601,064
Retailer's margin 11,594,982
Packaging supplies 7,781,058
Tolling fees 1,772,717
Direct labor 58,120

p 1,297,948,603

c. Other Taxable Incoma

Below is an analysis of the Parent Company’s other taxable income for the taxable year:

Rental income Lol 1,228,069
Other income 2,325,656
p 3,553,725
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Iremized Deductions

Below Is an analysis of the Parent Company's itemized deductions for the taxable year;

Personnel costs 2] 49,104,532
Finance cost 57,307,325
Taxes and licenses 17,907,191
Representation and entertainment 7,433,562
Realized foreign exchange loss 5,575,976
Repairs and maintenance 4,090,764
Freight and handling costs 3,914,733
Advertising 3,197,042
Professlonal fees 3,011,414
Communication, light and water 2,973,998
Depreciation and amortization 2,572,293
Contracted services 2,105,812
Transportation and travel 1,978 810
Rentals 1,285.480
Office and farm supplies 1,032,146
Production supplies 429 879
Dues and subscription 350,401
Bank charges 124 048
Insurance &7 734
Others 3,340,209

P 167,803,349
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PKF R.S. Bernaldo & Associates PKF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO ACCOMPANY
INCOME TAX RETURN

The Board of Directors amd the Stockholders
AGRINURTURE, INC.

Mo, 54 Mational Road

Dampol 1I-A, Pulilan

Bulacan

Wea have audited the financial statements of AGRINURTURE. INC. as of December 31, 2022
and 2021 and for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, on which we hava
rendered the attached report dated April 5, 202 3.

In compliance with Revenus Regulation V-20, we are stating that we are not related by
consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal stockholders of the Company.

R.5. BERNALDO & ASSOCIATES
BOAPRC No, 0300

Valid until May 28, 2024

SEC Group A Accradited

Accreditation Mo. 0300-SEC

Valid until 2024 audit period

BSP Group B Accredited

Accreditation No. 0300-BSP

Valid until 2026 audit period

BIR Accreditation Mo. 08-007673-000-2023
Valid from Januvary 31, 2023 until January 30, 2026
IC Group A Accredited

Accreditation Mo, 0300-1C

Valid until 2026 audit period

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 126203

SEC Group A Accradited

Accraditation Mo, 126203-5EC

Walid until 2025 audit pariod

BSP Group C Accredited

Accroditation Mo, 126203-B5P

Valid until 2025 audit pariod

BIR Accreditation No. OB-007679-002-2020
Valid frem October 20, 2020 until October 19, 2023
Tax identification Mo, 271-226-260

PTR No. 8667812

Izsuad on January &4, 2023 at Makati City

April §, 2023
Makati City, Metro Manila

BOA PRC Mo, (30- BIR Accredited - SEC Group A Accrediled - BSP Group B Accredited - 1C Accredilad
18/F Cityland Condominium 10 Tower 1, 156 H.Y, dela Costa Sireet, Avala Morth , Makati City. Philippines 1226

Tel: +632 B812-1T18 10 22 Emall: rsbassocifipkfrsbarnaldo.com www pkfrabernaldo.com

R.5. Bormaldo & Associabes s & membes fem ol the PEF Inlesmational Limited Famiy of legally independer firms and does nal accept any
reapongibaily of liakdity for tha aclions or nactions of any individual member or comespoandent Sm or firms




PKF R.S. Bernaldo & Associates PKF

REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
AGRINURTURE, INC.

Mo. 54 Mational Hoad

Dampal 1l-A, Pulilan

Bulacan

We have issued our report dated Aprl 5, 2023 on the basic financial statements of
AGRINURTURE, INC. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, Qur audit was
conducted for the purpose of forming am opinion on the basic financial statements of
AGRINURTURE, ING. taken as a whole. The information in Index to the Financial Statements
and Supplementary Schedules as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, which is
not a required part of the financial staternents, is required to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Such information is the responsibility of the Management of
AGRINURTURE, INC. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

F.5. BERNALDD & ASSOCIATES

BOA/PRC Mo. D300

Walid until May 28, 2024

SEC Group A Accredited

Accraditation Mo. 0300-5EC

WValid until 2024 audit period

BSP Group B Accredited

Accreditation No. 0300-BSP

WValid until 2026 audit period

BIR Accreditation Mo, GB-007673-000-2023
WValid from January 31, 2023 until January 30, 2024
IC Group A Accredited

Accraditation No, 0300-1C

Walid until 2026 audit period

REAN G. ABALDS

Partner

CPA Certificate Mo. 128203

SEC Growp A Accredited

Accreditation Mo. 126203-5EC

Walid until 2025 audit period

BSP Group C Accredited

Agccreditation Mo. 126203-B5P

Valid until 2025 audit period

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-007679-002-2020
YWalid from October 20, 2020 until Dctobar 19, 2023
Tax Identification Mo, 271-226-260

PTR Mo, 9567812

Issued on Janary 4, 2023 at Makati City

April 5, 2023
Makati City, Matro Manila

BOA (PRG No. D300 BIR Accraditad « SEC Group A Accrediteds BSP Group B Accredited « 1C Accredited
18/F Cayland Condominium 10 Tower 1, 156 H.V. dela Costa Street, Ayala North . Makali City, Philippines 1226

Ted: +632 88121718 to 22 Emaill: rsbassocf@pkirsbemaldo.com wanw.phfrsbernaldo.com

5. Bamaldo & Associales is a member fiom of the PEF International Lirsted family of lsgally independent firms and dons nol accopl any
rEponsiiity of Eability for the achions or inactions of any individual moember or commespondent finm or firms.



AGRINURTURE, INC.

INDEX TO THE SEFARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

DECEMBER 31, 2022

—DRodly Content

Page No.

I Sthedule of Retaned Earnings Avallable for Dividend Declaration

{Part I 4C, Annex 68-0)
Map showing refabionships between and among direct and Indirect
subsidiaries (Part 1 4H)

Part 2

A Financial Assets

B Amounts Recelvable from Dirediors, Offcers, Employees, Related
Parthes and Principal Stockhodders (Other than Affillates)

c Receivable from Related Parties Elsminated during the Consolidaticn
of Financial Statements

o Lorsg-Term Dokt

£ Indebtedness to Refated Parties (included in the conscldated
statement of position)

F Guarantess of Securities of Dthar [s3uars

G Capital Siock

Other Required Information
m Schadule of Financlal Soundness Indicators (Pa I 4E)
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AGRINURTURE, THC.

SCHEDULE OF RETAIMED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 38, T02X

Mnsporopristed Rutained Bamings, Beginning £ [L,628.043,229)
Met imcome based on the face of aodijed fnasCia slatements e Bk N n

Liess Chvighind diclarations during the year - Froperty
Dividend declarations during the year - Cash
DersisgrRion of Dividend Income from an Associate
Unrestized foreign exchangs loss - net [ price yaar)

— PR atn s Ol FElaetd Gamings

— Rt =
Reissuance of ireassry shack .
Unrealized fadsign Enchangs galn - sl [oarant year) 7,603,079
Depreciation on revalustion screment (after tax) [ 5,658,090}
Fair walue sdjustment of Biclogical Assets resulling &o gain 7,643,425

— P Yoy Adjustment ~ .
Saiby-total 3557418

Met loss acthueal freallzed 15, 719424

Umappropriated Retained Earnings, Ending - (e12a36111)
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AGRINUERTURE, INC.
Schadule & - Financial Aisels
DECEMBEN 31, 2031
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AGRINURTURE, INC.

Schedule B - Amounts Recelvable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

DECEMBER 31, 2022

Recelvables
Subsidiaries 968,758,996
Stockholders 116,423,993
Affiliates/Entity under common ownership 235,910,666

1,321,093,655
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AGRINURTURE. INMC.

Schedule E - Indebtedness to Related Parties

(Included in the consolidated financial statement of position)
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Payables
Subsidiaries 19,880,395
Stockholders 58,538,186
Affiliates/Entity under common ownership 12,505,495
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AGRINURTURE, INC.
SCHEDULE IV - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
Far ihe Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 3021

CURRENT RATIO 1.94 1.87
i 737 674
b Liabilities 1,000, 1 1,017,943,833
WORKING CAPITAL TO ASSETS 0,24 0,22
{Current Assets - Current Liabilitie) 7055 BEI, 740,392
Taotal Assets 3,066,572 441 3,952, 156,10
ASSET TO EQLATY 1.35 1.38
ﬁuﬂ_ 3,966 441 252 156, 1
Iders” BEquity 2,935,867, 629 v 1,1
DEBT TO EQUITY .35 0.38
Tatal Liabilfies 030, 704,812 1 15,003
Shareholders' Equity 2.9 7 2,857 841,106
LOMG-TERM DEBT TO EQLITY 0,018 0023
s — TR
Equity 2,935,667,629 2,867,641,106
FIXED ASSETS TO EQUITY 0.11 0.12
JFixed Assets - Accumulated Depreciation) 315,591,166 r%%ﬁ,_ﬂﬁ_
Sharehalders’ Eguity 2,535, 867,629 LAET,E41,1
CREDITORS EQUITY TO TOTAL ASSETS 0,26 0.27
Total Lisbiities 1,030, 04, 812 1,004,315
Total Assets 3,566,572 441 ~ 3,954,1 ﬁ,:gﬁ
FIZED ASSETS TO LONG-TERM DEBT 10,52 5,30
Fixed Agtets - Accumulated Depreciation 115 951, 166 51,936,840
Long-Term L1 71,1

piH



HATE CF RETURN DN TOTAL ASSETS 001 003
et Income F
Average Total Ascets 3,959,364, 275 3,762,553, 646
RATE OF RETURN ON EQUITY 0.01 .03
et Incodre 15,276,838 96,894,028
Averdge Stockholoers Equity 2,501,854, 368 2,776,875,821
GROSS PROFIT RATIO .12 0.0
Gross Income 176,244,263 173 343,276
EVENUCE 1486, 712,450 LATr012,914
OPERATING INCOME TO REVENUES 0.04 0.03
Incoms from Dperations 63,537,836 A1 E50 TR1
Revenues T80, 715,450 1,877,012,914
PRETAX INCOME TO REVENUES 0.0 0.04
Frefax Income 22 403 104, 365
Revenues 1 12, 1,877,013,514
HET INCOME TD REVENLIE 002 Q.05
et Tnoame 25,276, 638 S, B, D20
Revenues 1,486,712 450 1,877,012,514
INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO 1.392 3.548
Earmnings Before Interest and Tax 78 il ¥
Interest Expense 57,310,305 41,047,552
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